
YOLO LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION

Regular Meeting
AGENDA

May 26, 2022 - 9:00 a.m. 
COMMISSIONERS 

OLIN WOODS, CHAIR (PUBLIC MEMBER)
NORMA ALCALA, VICE CHAIR (CITY MEMBER)

WADE COWAN (CITY MEMBER)
GARY SANDY (COUNTY MEMBER)
DON SAYLOR (COUNTY MEMBER)
ALTERNATE COMMISSIONERS

ANGEL BARAJAS (COUNTY MEMBER)
RICHARD DELIBERTY (PUBLIC MEMBER)

GLORIA PARTIDA (CITY MEMBER)
CHRISTINE CRAWFORD
EXECUTIVE OFFICER

ERIC MAY
COMMISSION COUNSEL

This meeting is being agendized to allow the Commission, staff, and the public, to participate in the meeting
via teleconference, pursuant to Government Code section 54953(e)(1) (as amended by Assembly Bill 361),
available at the following link.

Teleconference Options to join Zoom meeting:
By PC: https://yolocounty.zoom.us/j/86074085899

or
Meeting ID: 860 7408 5899
By Phone: (408) 638-0968

Government Code section 54953(e)(1) authorizes local legislative bodies to hold public meetings via
teleconference and to make public meetings accessible telephonically or otherwise electronically to all
members of the public. Members of the public are encouraged to observe and participate in the
teleconference.
Further instructions on how to electronically participate and submit your public comment can be found in the
PUBLIC PARTICIPATION instructions at the end of this agenda.
In the rare event of a widespread internet disruption where Zoom is not available either at the beginning or
during the meeting, the meeting will be conducted utilizing the following teleconference call dial in number
(605) 475-6006 using Access Code 680-0491.

NOTICE:
This agenda has been posted at least five (5) calendar days prior to the meeting in a location freely accessible
to members of the public, in accordance with the Brown Act and the Cortese Knox Hertzberg Act. The public
may subscribe to receive emailed agendas, notices and other updates by contacting staff at
lafco@yolocounty.org.

All persons are invited to testify and submit written comments to the Commission.  If you challenge a LAFCo
action in court, you may be limited to issues raised at the public hearing or submitted as written comments
prior to the close of the public hearing.  If you wish to submit written material at the hearing, please supply 8
copies.

FPPC - Notice to All Parties and Participants in LAFCo Proceedings
All parties and  participants on a matter to be heard by the Commission that have made campaign
contributions totaling $250 or more to any Commissioner in the past 12 months must disclose this fact, either
orally or in writing, for the official record as required by Government Code Section 84308.

Contributions and expenditures for political purposes related to any proposal or proceedings before LAFCo are
subject to the reporting requirements of the Political Reform Act and the regulations of the Fair Political
Practices Commission, and must be disclosed to the Commission prior to the hearing on the matter.

11

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202120220AB361
https://yolocounty.zoom.us/j/86074085899
mailto:lafco@yolocounty.org


PLEASE NOTE - The numerical order of items on this agenda is for convenience of reference. Items may be
taken out of order upon request of the Chair or Commission members.
 
      

CALL TO ORDER
 

1. Pledge of Allegiance  
 

2. Roll Call  
 

3. Public Comment: This is an opportunity for members of the public to address the Commission
on subjects relating to LAFCo purview but not relative to items on this Agenda. The
Commission reserves the right to impose a reasonable time limit on any topic or on any
individual speaker.

 

 

OATH OF OFFICE
 

4. Wade Cowan, Winters (Regular City Member) 

Gloria Partida, Davis (Alternate City Member)

 

 

CONSENT AGENDA
 

5. Renew authorization for remote (teleconference/videoconference) meetings by finding,
pursuant to Assembly Bill 361, that (a) the COVID-19 pandemic state of emergency is ongoing,
and (b) meeting in person would present imminent risks to the health or safety of attendees

 

 

6. Approve the LAFCo Meeting Minutes of April 28, 2022  
 

7. Correspondence  
 

PUBLIC HEARINGS
 

8. Consider approving Resolution 2022-03 adopting findings as a responsible agency for the
subsequent environmental Impact report addendum and statement of overriding
considerations pursuant to CEQA (California Environmental Quality Act) Guidelines Section
15096 and adopting Resolution 2022-04 to amend the City of Davis Sphere of Influence
(SOI) for the Davis Innovation and Sustainability Campus (DiSC 2022) Project (LAFCo No. 22-
02)

 

 

9. Consider adoption of the Final LAFCo Budget for Fiscal Year 2022/23  
 

REGULAR AGENDA
 

10. Consider Resolution 2022-05 authorizing the City of Woodland to provide out of agency
water and sewer services to the Yolo Cold Storage Project, APN 027-270-046 located on the
northeast corner of West Street and I-5 off of County Road 19A  (LAFCo No. 22-03)

 

 

EXECUTIVE OFFICER'S REPORT
 

11. A report by the Executive Officer on recent events relevant to the Commission and an update
of staff activity for the month. The Commission or any individual Commissioner may request
that action be taken on any item listed. 

     a. 05.26.22 Long Range Planning Calendar

     b. EO Activity Report - April 25 through May 0, 2022

 

22



     c. CALAFCO Legislative Report
 

 

COMMISSIONER REPORTS
 

12. Action items and reports from members of the Commission, including announcements,
questions to be referred to staff, future agenda items, and reports on meetings and information
which would be of interest to the Commission or the public.

 

 

ADJOURNMENT
 

13. Adjourn to the next LAFCo Meeting  
 

I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing agenda was posted by 5:00 p.m. on Friday, May
20, 2022, at the following places:
 

On the bulletin board outside the east entrance of the Erwin W. Meier County Administration
Building, 625 Court Street, Woodland, CA;
 
On the LAFCo website at: www.yololafco.org.

 

ATTEST: 

Terri Tuck, Clerk 
Yolo LAFCo

 

NOTICE
If requested, this agenda can be made available in appropriate alternative formats to persons with a
disability, as required by Section 202 of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 and the Federal
Rules and Regulations adopted in implementation thereof. Persons seeking an alternative format
should contact the Commission Clerk for further information. In addition, a person with a disability who
requires a modification or accommodation, including auxiliary aids or services, in order to participate
in a public meeting should contact the Commission Clerk as soon as possible and at least 24 hours
prior to the meeting. The Commission Clerk may be reached at (530) 666-8048 or at the following
address: Yolo LAFCo, 625 Court Street, Suite 107, Woodland, CA 95695

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION INSTRUCTIONS:
Based on guidance from the California Department of Public Health and the California Governor's
Office, in order to minimize the spread of COVID-19, please consider the following: 

Join the Yolo LAFCo meeting at https://yolocounty.zoom.us/j/86074085899, or by phone via 1-408-
638-0968, Webinar ID: 860 7408 5899.

1. Submit live comment by joining the meeting and press the "raise a hand" button or if joining by
phone only, press *9 to indicate a desire to make a comment. The chair will call you by name or
phone number when it is your turn to comment. The Commission reserves the right to impose a
reasonable limit on time afforded to any topic or to any individual speaker.

* If you are joining by zoom and phone, still use the zoom raise a hand button as *9 will not work.
 

2. Submit written comment on any matter within the Commission's subject matter jurisdiction,
regardless of whether it is on the agenda for Commission consideration or action. Submit your
comment, limited to 250 words or less, via email to https://www.yololafco.org, or by U.S. mail to
Yolo LAFCo at 625 Court Street, Suite 107, Woodland, CA, 95695, by 1 p.m. on the Wednesday
prior to the Commission meeting. Your comment will be read at the meeting.

33

http://www.yololafco.org
https://yolocounty.zoom.us/j/86074085899
https://www.yololafco.org/


 
3. Submit verbal comment by calling (530) 666-8048; state and spell your name, mention the

agenda item number you are calling about and leave your comment. Verbal comments must be
received no later than 1 p.m. on the Wednesday prior to the Commission meeting. Your comment
will be read at the meeting by the Commission Clerk; limited to 3 minutes per item.

 
 

44



  
  Consent    5.       

LAFCO
Meeting Date: 05/26/2022  

Information
SUBJECT
Renew authorization for remote (teleconference/videoconference) meetings by finding, pursuant to
Assembly Bill 361, that (a) the COVID-19 pandemic state of emergency is ongoing, and (b) meeting in
person would present imminent risks to the health or safety of attendees

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Renew authorization for remote (teleconference/videoconference) meetings by finding, pursuant to
Assembly Bill 361, that (a) the COVID-19 pandemic state of emergency is ongoing, and (b) meeting in
person would present imminent risks to the health or safety of attendees.

FISCAL IMPACT
None.

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDED ACTION
The recommended action is required by Assembly Bill 361 to continue meeting remotely during a
declared state of emergency. The Commission has been meeting remotely pursuant to AB 361 since
October 28, 2021. AB 361 amended the Brown Act to add simplified procedures that make it easier to
hold remote meetings during a state of emergency proclaimed by the Governor (a local emergency is
insufficient). See Gov. Code §54953(e). To meet remotely during a proclaimed emergency the
legislative body must find either of the following circumstances is present; (a) state or local officials
continue to impose or recommend measures to promote social distancing, or (b) as a result of the
declared emergency, the legislative body finds by majority vote that meeting in person would present
imminent risks to the health or safety of attendees.

To date, the Commission has relied on County staff regarding the use of the Board Chamber and the
social distancing recommendations of the County Health Officer in adopting AB 361 findings. Like
many other county health officers, however, the Yolo County Health Officer is no longer issuing
requirements or recommendations for social distancing and the Commission must therefore consider
the "imminent risks" finding to continue meeting remotely. The following facts and conclusions made by
County staff seem sufficient to support such a finding for Commission meetings also, including:

Like many other facilities throughout the County, the Board of Supervisors Chamber is not
designed to ensure the Commission, staff, and attendees can remain six feet apart to reduce the
possibility of infection with the virus that causes COVID-19; 
Holding in-person meetings would encourage community members to come to County facilities to
participate in local government, and some of them are likely to be at high risk for serious illness
from COVID-19 and/or live with someone who is at high risk.

Although Commission meetings in general do not have many attendees, staff believe the Commission
can appropriately make the findings necessary to allow continued implementation of AB 361.

BACKGROUND
Because the Commission uses the Board Chamber for its meetings staff has been following the
guidelines set by County staff  and the Board of Supervisors regarding the use of the Board Chamber.
County staff states that the risks mentioned above could be reduced significantly through the

55



implementation of technological improvements to allow hybrid meetings with limited in-person
attendance, assuming (as CAO staff expect) that such improvements reduce in-person attendance
enough to allow social distancing. CAO staff anticipate such improvements may be available in the
Board of Supervisors Chamber in the near future and, at that point, the Commission could
appropriately reconsider the "imminent risk" finding and commence hybrid meetings. It is possible the
June 30 meeting could be held as a hybrid meeting and staff will work closely with County staff to
identify and announce a date of return for the Commission.

Under the hybrid approach, most or all Commission members and essential staff would attend in-
person, and other staff and members of the public would likely choose to participate remotely for the
sake of convenience. A continued decline in community case rates could also support revisiting the
"imminent risk" finding in the near future. Staff would also take reasonable precautions in the Board
Chamber including:

Physical distancing - in a hybrid format staff would set up the Board Chamber to have physical
distancing where at least every other seat fot he public is out of service to ensure distance
between attendees.
Air filtration - County staff have added HEPA filtration to the Board Chamber to ensure filtration of
air to remove viral particles

The Board of Supervisors could also direct its staff to implement other precautions as appropriate such
as plexiglass barriers and face coverings, as well as mandatory attendee testing (if legally viable). Staff
will continue to keep the Commission updated.

Attachments
No file(s) attached.

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
Christine Crawford Christine Crawford 05/16/2022 02:11 PM
Form Started By: Terri Tuck Started On: 05/13/2022 10:20 AM
Final Approval Date: 05/17/2022

66



  
  Consent    6.       

LAFCO
Meeting Date: 05/26/2022  

Information
SUBJECT
Approve the LAFCo Meeting Minutes of April 28, 2022

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Approve the LAFCo Meeting Minutes of April 28, 2022.

Attachments
ATT-LAFCo Minutes 04.28.22

Form Review
Form Started By: Terri Tuck Started On: 05/13/2022 12:16 PM
Final Approval Date: 05/13/2022

77



88



DRAFT 

YOLO LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION 

MEETING MINUTES 
April 28, 2022 

The Yolo Local Agency Formation Commission met on the 28th day of April 2022, at 9:00 a.m. via 
teleconference. Voting members present were Chair and Public Member Olin Woods, County 
Member Gary Sandy, and City Members Tom Stallard and Norma Alcala. Voting members absent 
were Don Saylor. Others present were Alternate Public Member Richard DeLiberty, Executive 
Officer Christine Crawford, Clerk Terri Tuck, and Counsel Eric May. 

CALL TO ORDER 

Chair Woods called the Meeting to order at 9:02 a.m. 

Item № 1 Pledge 

Tom Stallard led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

Item № 2 Roll Call 

PRESENT: Alcala, Sandy, Stallard, Woods ABSENT: Saylor 

Item № 3 Public Comments 

None. 

CONSENT 

Item № 5 Approve the LAFCo Meeting Minutes of March 31, 2022 

Item № 6 Review and file Fiscal Year 2021/22 Third Quarter Financial Update 

Item № 7 Ratify Resolution 2022-02 commending Tom Stallard for his tenure with the 
Yolo LAFCo as a Regular City Member since May 2018  

Minute Order 2022-09: Approved recommended action Items 5, 6 and 7. Item 4 was 
pulled from Consent for discussion. 

MOTION: Alcala SECOND: Stallard 
AYES: Alcala, Sandy, Stallard, Woods 
NOES: None 
ABSENT: None 

Item № 4 Renew authorization for remote (teleconference/videoconference) meetings 
by finding, pursuant to Assembly Bill 361, that (a) the COVID-19 pandemic 
state of emergency is ongoing, and (b) meeting in person would present 
imminent risks to the health or safety of attendees 

Minute Order 2022-10: This item was pulled from Consent by Chair Woods to poll the 
Commission on returning to in-person meetings starting with the May 26, 2022 meeting. 

Item 6 

99



Yolo LAFCo Meeting Minutes  April 28, 2022 
 

 

 2 

Staff stated that due to ongoing technical difficulties in the Board Chamber regarding the 
hybrid approach to in-person meetings and the likelihood of significant public attendance 
with case numbers rising again, it was recommended to delay in-person meetings until 
after the May meeting. Therefore, the authorization was renewed. 

MOTION: Sandy SECOND: Alcala 
AYES: Alcala, Sandy, Stallard, Woods 
NOES: None 
ABSENT: None 

Due to a scheduling conflict Commissioner Stallard was excused from the meeting at 9:19a.m. 

Public Hearing 

Item № 8 Consider and adopt the proposed LAFCo Budget for Fiscal Year 2022/23 and 
set May 26, 2022, as the public hearing date to approve the final budget 

After an overview report by staff, the Chair opened the Public Hearing. There were no 
comments and the Public Hearing was closed. 

Minute Order 2022-11: The recommended action was approved and May 26, 2022, was 
set as the public hearing to approve the final budget. 

MOTION: Sandy SECOND: Alcala 
AYES: Alcala, Sandy, Woods 
NOES: None 
EXCUSED: Stallard 

REGULAR 

Item № 9 Consider and adopt the LAFCo Annual Work Plan for Fiscal Year 2022/23 

Minute Order 2022-12: The recommended action was approved. 

MOTION: Sandy SECOND: Alcala 
AYES: Alcala, Sandy, Woods 
NOES: None 
EXCUSED: Stallard 

Item № 10 Elect Chair and Vice Chair for the Commission to serve one-year terms, 
beginning May 1, 2022 through May 1, 2023 

Minute Order 2022-13: Commissioner Woods was elected to another one-year term as 
Chair, ending May 1, 2023. 

MOTION: Sandy SECOND: Alcala 
AYES: Alcala, Sandy, Woods 
NOES: None 
EXCUSED: Stallard 

Minute Order 2022-14: Commissioner Alcala was elected to a one-year term as Vice 
Chair, ending May 1, 2022. 

1010



Yolo LAFCo Meeting Minutes  April 28, 2022 
 

 

 3 

MOTION: Sandy SECOND: Woods 
AYES: Alcala, Sandy, Woods 
NOES: None 
EXCUSED: Stallard 

Item № 11 Executive Officer’s Report 

The Commission was given written reports of the Executive Officer’s activities for the 
period of January 24 through March 25, 2022, and was verbally updated on recent events 
relevant to the Commission, including the Long Range Planning Calendar. 

Staff stated the City of Woodland would be rotating off of LAFCo for two years, the City of 
Winters would move up as the Regular City Member and the City of Davis comes on as 
the City Member Alternate. Staff confirmed that during the City Selection Committee 
Meeting last week City of Winters Mayor Wade Cowan was chosen to stay on LAFCo as 
the Regular City Member whose term expires May 2026 and City of Davis Mayor Gloria 
Partida was chosen as the City Member Alternate whose term expires May 2024. 
Additionally, staff noted that since all of the cities have moved to November elections, 
LAFCo may want to consider changing its policy and move term expirations from May to 
January to coincide when the cities and the County approve their assignment lists. It was 
stated that staff would reach out to the city managers regarding their interest in this matter. 

Chair Woods asked if the new CALAFCO Executive Director (ED) was still being assisted 
by the former Executive Director. Staff stated the new ED René LaRoche was now full 
time, but the former ED Pamela Miller still had some contracted hours to assist Ms. 
LaRoche but staff was not sure how much longer that would last.  

Item № 12 Commissioner Reports 

Chair Woods remarked that he had written up a few comments regarding Mr. Stallard’s 
time on LAFCo and asked that staff send those comments to the Commission including 
Mr. Stallard since he had to leave the meeting early. 

Item № 13 Adjournment 
 

Minute Order 2022-15: By order of the Chair, the meeting was adjourned at 9:38 a.m. 
with Chair Woods commending Tom Stallard for his many years of service on the 
Commission. 

____________________________ 
Olin Woods, Chair 
Local Agency Formation Commission  

ATTEST:      County of Yolo, State of California 
 
________________________________ 
Terri Tuck 
Clerk to the Commission 

1111



1212



  
  Consent    7.       

LAFCO
Meeting Date: 05/26/2022  

Information
SUBJECT
Correspondence

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Receive and file the following correspondence:

A.  CALAFCO Quarterly-May 2022
 

Attachments
ATT A-CALAFCO Quarterly-May 2022

Form Review
Form Started By: Terri Tuck Started On: 05/19/2022 08:56 AM
Final Approval Date: 05/19/2022

1313



1414



NEWSLETTER
May, 2022 Edition 

BOARDROOM Brief 

NEW Associate Member! 

The Board met virtually on April 22 and 
considered a fairly light agenda. Among 
the actions taken was the acceptance of 
the Third Quarter financial reports, 
which included a payment to the Hyatt 
hotel for the block of rooms that had 
been guaranteed for the cancelled staff 
workshop. 

The new budgets for Fiscal Years 2022-
2023 and 2023-2024 were also 
approved. Given concerns regarding the 
ongoing pandemic as well as escalating 
inflation, the budgets maintain the 
previously implemented austerity 
measures where possible. However, 
based on feedback received by the 
Executive Director from various LAFCos, 
the budget does anticipate a healthy 
attendance at the conference and 2023 
workshop. 

The Board also revisited the legislative 
proposal from San Diego LAFCo 
regarding Government Code §56133 
that had been tabled in January. After 
discussion, the matter was rescheduled 
to the July Board meeting to allow the 
Legislative Committee time to gather 
additional information.  

Reports were also received regarding 
the fall conference, CALAFCO U sessions, 
and Spring Workshop, which are 
currently in planning. 

Members wishing to read full staff 
reports or minutes can download them 
from the CALAFCO website at 
www.calafco.org.  

M a y ,  2 0 2 2   |   P a g e  1  o f  4

SEE YOU LATER! 

consultation and design services for businesses 

and organizations throughout the United 

States. Chase Design has built an impressive 

reputation for producing effective designs that 

gets their clients results for their businesses.  

With a Mission to create extraordinary value 

See ASSOCIATE MEMBERS on Page 4 

A huge 

welcome to 

Chase Design, 

our newest 

Associate 

member. Founded in 2000 by Chris Chase, 

Creative Director and Principal, Chase Design is 

a San Diego based firm specializing in branding 

Copyright © 2022 CALAFCO. All Rights Reserved. 

SOME wise person once said that change is inevitable. Of 
course, the change that came to CALAFCO was the well-
deserved retirement of Pamela Miller as the CALAFCO 
Executive Director (ED). Pamela became ED in 2012 and 
has made an indelible mark on CALAFCO by maintaining 
its professional standards and by advocating with the 
legislature on behalf of LAFCos everywhere. She stayed 
through March on a consultant basis to 
assist with the transition of the new ED and 
she intends to see SB 938 to its conclusion. 

Unfortunately, pandemic restrictions meant 
that Pamela did not get the send-off that she deserved, 
but that only means she is owed a party. And, so, we 
refuse to say goodbye and, instead, leave it at “Thank 
you—and see you later!”  

Legislative Updates 

CALAFCO supported or sponsored bills continue to make 
positive progress in the legislative process. Most 
important is SB 938, the protest provisions bill, which 
makes updates to existing CKH statutory provisions 
associated with consolidations and dissolutions, as well as 
codifying the conditions under which a LAFCo may initiate 
dissolution of a district at the 25 percent protest 
threshold. SB 938 has been tentatively scheduled before 
the Assembly Local Government Committee on June 8th. 
LAFCos that have not yet submitted a letter of support 
are requested to do so before 5 PM on June 2, 2022. 

See LEGISLATION on Page 2 

Item 7-ATT A

1515



A Message from the 

Executive  
Director 

On the wall of my 

office is a sign. Those 

of you who are Tony Robbins fans will 

recognize the quote. It reads “All growth 

starts at the end of your comfort zone.” 

If that is true (and I sincerely hope that 

it is) then I have been growing by leaps 

and bounds. ;) 

Between the enormity of the change in 

Executive Directors, followed by an 

assault on Pamela on March 8th, it felt at 

first like being caught in the middle of a 

cyclone. Things have moderated now, 

but I have to sincerely thank all of the 

Board members, EOs, and staff who 

have reached out to welcome me, to 

check on me, and to offer support. You 

have all made the transition so much 

easier! I am humbled by your faith, 

trust, and friendship, and my vow is to 

make this changeover as smooth for you 

as possible. There is, obviously much for 

me to learn, but I am committed to 

learning everything quickly and well.  

So, what’s new in the CALAFCO world? 

Of course, the big news has to do with 

SB 938, which moved out of the Senate 

and now sits in the Assembly. Kudos to 

our devoted protest provisions working 

group, as well as thanks to Pamela Miller 

who is staying on in a volunteer capacity 

to see that through to the end. 

Also, event planning is now well 

underway. (See the schedule on page 

3.) A conference programming 

committee has been formed, but we 

could still use more people. If you would 

like to help, please contact José 

Henriquez (Sacramento) at 

henriquezj@saccounty.gov, or me.  

Finally, CALAFCO U sessions are also 

shaping up thanks to the able assistance 

of Dawn Longoria (Napa). Our first 

session is scheduled for June 20th. 

Please join us for what promises to be 

an interesting session regarding the 

strange new world of recruiting and 

hiring in this post-pandemic world! 

M a y ,  2 0 2 2   |   P a g e  2  o f  4  

CALAFCO Quarterly Newsletter                                                                          May, 2022 

Copyright © 2022 CALAFCO. All Rights Reserved. 

IN MEMORIUM 

CARL LEVERENZ, Butte LAFCo Commissioner 

Butte LAFCo mourns the loss of its Chair, Carl Leverenz. 
Commissioner Leverenz served with pride on the Butte LAFCo for the 
past 47 years where he always displayed great insight and wisdom. 
His calm demeanor and ability to keep politics at bay to solve 
problems earned him the Butte LAFCo Chair seat, which he held 
continuously since 1975. A local legend, Commissioner Leverenz was 
known for his servant’s heart, having had not only a prominent legal 
career but a history of volunteerism on a broad assortment of boards 
and organizations, which earned him the Chico Rotary Club’s 
Community Service Award in 2018.  

WARREN NELSON, Napa LAFCo Commissioner 

Warren Nelson, Napa LAFCo Commissioner, passed away in April, 
2022. Among his many hats, Commissioner Warren served as 
Executive Officer for Marin LAFCO in the 1970s, and as a Yountville 
City Commissioner from 1980-1986. An avid proponent for LAFCos, 
Commissioner Warren worked with his friend and fellow 
Commissioner, Mike Gotch, on legislation that increased LAFCOs’ 
independence and authority. His dedication and friendly nature will 
be greatly missed.  

CALAFCO sends its deepest condolences to the family, friends, and 
co-workers of these remarkable men. 

LEGISLATION 
                                                        Continued from Page 1 

Other CALAFCO supported bills include:  

AB 897 (Mullin), establishment of a regional climate network has 
stalled and is in its second year. 

AB 1640 (Ward), seems to have replaced AB 897 with another 
regional climate bill. It is scheduled to go before Assembly 
Appropriations on May 19th. 

AB 1773 (Patterson), return of Williamson Act subvention funding, is 
scheduled before Assembly Appropriations on May 19th. 

AB 2957, the CALAFCO sponsored Omnibus bill, has passed out of 
the Assembly and is waiting on a Senate hearing date. 

SB 1490, 1491, and 1492, annual Validation Acts, have passed out 
of the Senate and are waiting on Assembly hearing dates. 

 
 

 

Contra Costa LAFCo reports that it has been busy with a 

surge in new applications, including a large boundary 

reorganization. In Spring 2022, the Contra Costa LAFCo 

Commissioners unanimously approved annexation of East 

Contra Costa Fire Protection District (ECCFPD) comprising 249+ 

square miles serving 132,400 residents to Contra Costa County 

Fire Protection District comprising 306+ square miles serving 

628,200 residents, and dissolving ECCFPD.   

The boundary reorganization is consistent with two LAFCO 

Municipal Service Reviews and a special study, all of which 

noted various constraints and challenges with fire and 

emergency medical services in East Contra Costa County. The 

LAFCo process was fairly lengthy but with few obstacles. All  

See CONNECTIONS on Page 4 

1616



M a y ,  2 0 2 2   |   P a g e  3  o f  4  

CALAFCO Quarterly Newsletter                                                                          May, 2022 

Copyright © 2022 CALAFCO. All Rights Reserved. 

 

 

MARK YOUR CALENDARS! 

CALAFCO 2022 ANNUAL CONFERENCE 
October 19 - 21, 2022 

Plan on joining us at the Hyatt Regency Newport Beach John Wayne 
Airport on October 19-21, 2022 for our long-awaited, long-overdue An-
nual Conference! The program planning committee is forming and 
CALAFCO staff is working with the facility on the details. Watch for more 
information soon. We are looking forward to seeing everyone in-person 
in Newport Beach!  

2023 STAFF WORKSHOP 
April 26 - 28, 2023 

Come learn about technical topics in a beautiful setting! Mark your cal-
endar now because you will not want to miss next year’s Staff Work-
shop on the beautiful grounds of Ironstone Vineyards.   

 
 
 
 
 

We are preparing some great CALAFCO U sessions for you and are 
pleased to again offer webinars to our members at no cost. Watch for 
the registration for the June 20th session to open soon.  

June 20, 2022:   Brave New World of HR: Hiring Headaches,  
1:00 PM    Trends, and Opportunities in a Post-Pandemic 
   World  
 
July 21, 2022:     Sharing the Wealth: A Deep Dive into Tax  
1:00 PM   Exchange  
 
Sep. 19, 2022:    Two Agencies in Dispute: What is LAFCo’s Role  
1:30 PM     in Assisting to Resolve the Conflict?  
 
TBD   The Dirty Dozen: Things I Wish I Knew About  
    The Act    

BOARD MEETINGS: 

July 22, 2022 LOCATION: Virtual 

Oct. 21, 2022 LOCATION: Newport Beach (Conference) 

Dec. 2, 2022 LOCATION: Virtual 

LEGISLATIVE COMMITTEE MEETINGS: 

July 29, 2022 LOCATION: Virtual 

Sept. 16, 2022 LOCATION: Virtual 

Oct. 7, 2022 LOCATION: TBD 

Nov. 4, 2022 LOCATION: TBD 

 

Topic  
Suggestions 

We are always on the look 

out for good topics for our 

conferences, workshops, and webinars.  

If you have an idea for a topic, please 

email to René LaRoche at 

rlaroche@calafco.org.  

 

1717



M a y ,  2 0 2 2   |   P a g e  4  o f  4  

CALAFCO Quarterly Newsletter                                                                          May, 2022 

Copyright © 2022 CALAFCO. All Rights Reserved. 

ASSOCIATE Members 
Continued from Page 1 

CHASE DESIGNS, continued 

for their clients by connecting business strategy and creative execution, Chase Designs helps 
businesses to make a statement with impactful branding that reinforces the values of the business. 
Go to ChrisChaseDesign.com to find out more, or contact Chris Chase at chris@chrischasedesign.com. 

 

 

The information below is provided by the Associate member upon joining the Association. All Associate Member 
information can be found in the CALAFCO Member Directory. 

 

 

 

CALAFCO wishes to thank all of our Associate Members for your ongoing support and partnership. We 
look forward to highlighting you all in future Quarterly Reports.  

CONNECTIONS 
          

 

 

 

  

parties were cooperative and there were no oral 

or written protests filed.   

 

Contra Costa LAFCo Executive Officer Lou Ann 

Texeira extends thanks and kudos to Joe 

Serano, Executive Officer Santa Cruz LAFCO, 

and to Mark Bramfitt, Executive Officer Sonoma 

LAFCO, for their support.  

 

NEW Roles  

ROB BARTOLI Appointed San Mateo EO 

San Mateo LAFCo reports that its commission 

took action to appoint Rob Bartoli as Executive 

Officer on March 16, 2022.  Rob has held the 

title of Interim Executive Officer since the 

retirement of Martha Poyatos.  

TAYLOR MORRIS Welcomed as L.A. GIS 

Technician 

Los Angeles LAFCo has welcomed new GIS 

Technician, Taylor Morris, who began work at 

LAFCO this month. Taylor recently relocated to 

Los Angeles after working for six years in the 

right-of-way section of the Utah Department of 

Transportation. He holds a Bachelor of Science 

in Geography and Environmental and Sustaina-

bility Studies from the University of Utah.  

MICHAEL HENDERSON Hired as Riverside 

GIS Analyst 

Riverside LAFCo is pleased to welcome Michael 

Henderson to the newly created position of GIS 

Analyst.  

KRYSTAL BRADFORD Takes Over as Butte 

Clerk 

Krystal Bradford has taken over the reins as 

Butte LAFCo’s Clerk upon the retirement of Joy 

Stover.  

Congratulations to everyone! 

DTA 

DTA is a national public finance 
and urban economics consulting firm  
specializing in infrastructure and public 
service finance. Their financing programs 
have utilized a variety of public financing 
mechanisms, such as Ads, CFDs, LLDs, and 
various types of fee programs.  

To learn more about DTA, visit their web-
site at www.FinanceDTA.com, or contact 
Colleen Liao at colleen@financedta.com. 

SWALE, INC 

Swale’s consulting services focus on LAFCo crit-
ical issues including municipal service reviews, 
SOI’s, CEQA compliance, strategic planning, 
workshops, and mapping with geographic infor-
mation systems (GIS). Their northern California 
office is expanding to bring you the best of 
consulting services. 

To learn more about SWALE, INC visit their 
website at www.swaleinc.com, or contact Kateri 
Harrison at Harrison@swaleinc.com 

Continued from Page 2 

1818



  
  Public Hearings    8.       

LAFCO
Meeting Date: 05/26/2022  

Information
SUBJECT
Consider approving Resolution 2022-03 adopting findings as a responsible agency for the
subsequent environmental Impact report addendum and statement of overriding considerations
pursuant to CEQA (California Environmental Quality Act) Guidelines Section 15096 and
adopting Resolution 2022-04 to amend the City of Davis Sphere of Influence (SOI) for the Davis
Innovation and Sustainability Campus (DiSC 2022) Project (LAFCo No. 22-02)

RECOMMENDED ACTION

1. Receive staff presentation and hold a public hearing to receive public comments on this item.
2. Consider approval of Resolution 2022-03 adopting findings as a Responsible Agency for the the

Subsequent Environmental Impact Report and Addendum (EIR) for the DiSC 2022 Project and
Statement of Overriding Considerations (Att. A).

3. Consider adoption of Resolution 2022-04 approving the City of Davis SOI Amendment for 118.5
acres comprised of the DiSC 2022 Project and the Mace Triangle (Att. B).

FISCAL IMPACT
No fiscal impact. The Project applicant submitted an application deposit and will reimburse LAFCo for
all processing costs.

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDED ACTION
On February 1, 2022, the City of Davis approved placing the DiSC 2022 Project on the ballot for the
June 7, 2022 election to allow the voters to consider the General Plan Amendment and the Baseline
Project Features for the Project. LAFCo is responsible for developing the City's Sphere of Influence
(SOI), which is "a plan for the probable physical boundaries and service area of a local agency, as
determined by the commission." (Government Code §56076.) LAFCo requested the SOI Amendment
application for consideration before the election, rather than after, because an unincorporated area
cannot be annexed into a city unless that area is within its SOI and considering the SOI amendment
before annexation follows good planning principles. Approval of the SOI Amendment would lay the
groundwork for a potential future annexation and conversion of Prime Farmland to urban uses for the
northern 102 acres of the Project.  Annexation would be considered as a subsequent application to
LAFCo if the City of Davis Measure H is approved by the voters at the June 7, 2022 primary election,
which is required because Davis's Measure J requires voter approval for any change in the General
Plan land use designation from agricultural or open space to non-agricultural/open space. But it is
important to underscore that, if the SOI Amendment is approved but the voters reject the project, the
area would remain in the City's SOI. Therefore, the decision before LAFCo is not necessarily weighing
solely the merits of the DiSC 2022 project but a decision on how best to manage orderly development
and balancing that development with potentially competing interests of discouraging urban sprawl,
preserving prime agricultural lands, and efficiently extending government services.

Staff recommends the SOI Amendment request is an appropriate expansion of the City's future
boundary. It would result in orderly development and an efficient extension of City services. There are
competing interests regarding the protection of prime agricultural land because approval would result in
the loss of 102 acres of Prime Farmland. However, with the Mace Boulevard interchange there will be

1919



ongoing development pressure at this location and urbanization would be appropriate to take
advantage of this freeway access and visibility. The City of Davis has not grown significantly in the last
20 years, and growth at the SOI Amendment area would be relatively controlled because the site is
surrounded to the north and east by land in dedicated conservation easements (excepting the 85 acre
parcel to the immediate north that was part of the original DISC project).  

Ordinarily, a city's SOI is amended in coordination with General Plan updates as part of the city's long-
term planning process, or in conjunction with LAFCo's municipal service reviews, typically conducted
every five years. The City of Davis has not completed a comprehensive General Plan Update since
2001 and LAFCo last updated the City's SOI in 2008. Ideally, LAFCo would not approve SOI
Amendments in reaction to developer application requests and instead work with the cities on
comprehensive updates, although there is no legal prohibition for LAFCo considering an SOI
amendment for a specific project. However in this case, the Project was originally solicited by the City
for an innovation park use which would benefit from freeway access/transportation hubs not available
in existing SOI land in other areas. The City solicited requests for locations to site an innovation park in
2014 and four were submitted. The other three sites are either not available or no longer available for
consideration (Nishi, Bretton Woods Active Adult Community, and the PG&E Corporation Yard). The
other undeveloped areas within the SOI are not conducive to the innovation park use and do not have
the location, access, and visibility that this location does with the I-80 interchange. Therefore, staff
recommends that it is appropriate to consider the SOI Amendment now rather than waiting for the
General Plan update process to conclude. 

BACKGROUND
Application Description 
This application is a request to amend the City of Davis' Sphere of Influence ("SOI") to include the
properties at APNs 033-630-006, -009, -011, -012 (the Area). This request is solely for a SOI
Amendment and does not include the final annexation, which would come before LAFCo if the voters
approve the project at the June 7 election. 

The Area to be added to the SOI is located to the north and east of the City of Davis and borders the
City on two sides. The Area is approximately 118.5 acres in size. The northern 102 acres represent the
project site for the proposed DiSC 2022 project ("Project"), while the southern 16.5 acres
encompasses the "Mace Triangle," which is included in this request in order to avoid the creation of an
island of unincorporated land. The northern 102 acres is currently agricultural land and the southern
16.5 acre "Mace Triangle" includes Ikeda's Market, the City's water tank and a park-and-ride lot.
Surrounding land uses include the Mace Drainage Channel and agricultural land beyond that to the
north, I-80 to the south, agricultural land to the east and developed urban uses within the City to the
west.  

LAFCo Considerations  
LAFCo policies indicate a strong preference for developing vacant land already within the City's
existing SOI first and steering growth towards non-Prime Farmland. Protecting agricultural land and
open space, and discouraging urban sprawl are among the core of LAFCo's state-mandated
mission. LAFCo can consider a future annexation which will result in the conversion of prime
agricultural land only if the Commission finds that the proposal will lead to planned, orderly, and
efficient development. The Commission would also need to find that other existing land within the
sphere of influence is not available and/or suitable to accommodate this type of innovation park use. 

Written Statement Required by Government Code Section 56425(e) 
In accordance with Government Code Section 56425(e), in determining the SOI of each local agency,
the commission shall consider and prepare a written statement of its determinations with respect to
each of the following:

1. The present and planned land uses in the area, including agricultural and open-space lands.
2. The present and probable need for public facilities and services in the area.
3. The present capacity of public facilities and adequacy of public services that the agency provides

or is authorized to provide.
2020



4. The existence of any social or economic communities of interest in the area if the commission
determines that they are relevant to the agency.

5. For an update of a sphere of influence of a city or special district that provides public facilities or
services related to sewers, municipal and industrial water, or structural fire protection, that occurs
pursuant to subdivision (g) on or after July 1, 2012, the present and probable need for those public
facilities and services of any disadvantaged unincorporated communities within the existing
sphere of influence.

Yolo LAFCo's Project Policies elaborate on these state mandated factors with the following additional
standards: 

6.3 Determining the Sphere of Influence
In determining the SOI of each local agency, LAFCo will consider and prepare a written statement of its
determinations required under Government Code §56425. LAFCo will consider the following criteria
when studying and determining the SOI for the cities and special districts within the County of Yolo:

a. Retention and strengthening of community identities, as well as increasing efficiency and
conserving resources, by providing essential services within a framework of controlled
growth;

b. Identification of the county's prime agricultural land and protection of this land through all
available devices, such as including controlling the provision of services, requiring infill
development first, and preferring non-prime land for growth. Other open-space resources
such as stream banks, flood plains, and present and future recreation areas should also be
protected for public benefit;

c. Creation of realistic and controlled, yet flexible, planning areas into which anticipated services
can be expanded as growth requires and as the communities' resources provide;

d. Provision of infrastructure systems such as streets, sewers, water, open space for parks and
recreation as a product of growth, rather than growth inducing;

e. Encouragement of city annexation or incorporation as a means of supplying the full range of
urban services as required; and

f. Evaluation of the availability and need for basic services in each community and forecast
these to meet anticipated population growth, and recommend creation, expansion,
consolidation and/or reorganization of districts when need for such change is indicated.

SOI Amendment Determinations

The present and planned land uses in the area, including agricultural and open space lands 
The Area is surrounded to the west and south by urban land uses within City limits. Land to the north
and east are zoned and currently used for agricultural production. The land to the east is under a
conservation easement, and therefore will remain in agricultural use. The land to the north is also
under a conservation easement, except for the 85 acre parcel that was part of the original DISC Project
that was denied by the voters in 2020 and that has been removed from the Project. Considering the I-
80 interchange, it is probable that development pressure will continue on the subject property but
additional growth inducing impacts are limited due to the existence of surrounding conservation
easements. LAFCo policies indicate a strong preference for developing vacant land already within the
City's SOI first and steering growth towards non-Prime Farmland. The EIR determined the Project
would not be growth inducing, but it would still result in the significant loss of 102 acres of Prime
Farmland. The Mitigation and Monitoring Program requires conservation easements to be provided at
a 2:1 ratio, but it would not make up for this loss and remains a significant and unavoidable impact.  

The present and probable need for public facilities and services in the area 
The subject property is partially developed already with Ikeda's Market, City water tank, and a Park
and Ride lot. The City provides public facilities and services in this area, which would be extended to
the Area by the DiSC 2022 Project.  

The present capacity of public facilities and adequacy of public services that the agency
provides or is authorized to provide 

2121



The capacity of public facilities and adequacy of public services to provide for future urbanization of
this property has been thoroughly analyzed by the City's CEQA documentation for the original DISC
and DiSC 2022 Project. The EIR has determined the City has capacity of its public facilities (i.e. police,
fire, water and sewer, parks, roads, etc.) to serve the Project.  

The existence of any social or economic communities of interest in the area if the commission
determines that they are relevant to the agency 
The subject property is vacant and does not include any communities of interest.  

For an update of a sphere of influence of a city or special district that provides public facilities
or services related to sewers, municipal and industrial water, or structural fire protection, the
present and probable need for those public facilities and services of any disadvantaged
unincorporated communities within the existing sphere of influence 
Analysis provided by the California Association of LAFCos indicates that UC Davis is a disadvantaged
unincorporated community (DUC) as defined by statute, based on the presence of students who likely
have a low income. Although the Davis Creek Mobile Home Park was not highlighted as a DUC
possibly due to census block boundaries, it might be. Regardless, both of these areas within the City's
SOI already receive municipal sewer, water and fire protection services and, therefore, there is no
need to expand those boundaries, public facilities and services to the DUCs in the SOI.  

6.5 Sphere of Influence Analysis for Cities and Municipal-Like Special Districts 
Yolo LAFCo's policies provide guidance to LAFCo staff regarding the information needed to analyze
and establish SOIs.The policy is intended for a comprehensive SOI update that would happen in
conjunction with a municipal service review and many of the considerations are not as relevant for a
project-specific SOI Amendment. Notwithstanding, the policy is listed below with staff discussion for
each item.  

The information needed to establish the boundaries for SOIs for cities and municipal-like districts is as
follows:

a. Land Demand for Growth - The data necessary to establish the amount of land (beyond existing
boundaries) needed to accommodate the growth projected. While this will furnish the net bulk
requirement, additional studies, such as histories of subdivisions, developments, and
annexations, and the location and importance of existing open space and agricultural lands, will
be needed to indicate the probable location and direction of growth. Subtraction of existing
undeveloped land capable of development which is already within the city will furnish a net
requirement for "new" land. Spot maps and density factors, when available, will assist in
interpreting growth data.

Analysis: The City's existing residential, commercial, and industrial areas appear to be falling short
of overall demand. The full analysis of the City's needs should be performed as part of the City's
General Plan update.  This SOI Amendment is in response to the City soliciting interest for an
innovation park.  The undeveloped areas in the City's existing SOI are not well-suited for such a
use.
 

b. Water and Sewer Availability - The ability of each community to provide water and sewer to its
service area will be a controlling factor for sphere of influence boundaries. Any agency proposing
new development must show the availability of water supplies adequate for projected needs into
the future. Sphere of Influence revisions and amendments will need to review water availability
before including new territory in a city or municipal special district. Services will not be required to
be immediately available for any of the area. An examination of plans for future capital
expenditures by the responsible agency will furnish evidence for decisions on whether the service
can reasonably be expected to be extended to the area.

Analysis: The CEQA analysis indicates water and sewer capacity is available and services can be
extended to the area.

2222



 
c. Willingness and Ability to Extend Community Services - The willingness and capability of the

community to provide services as growth proceeds are two of the factors determining the urban
area's future. The ability to provide extension of services should include sufficient revenue for the
services required following the proposed boundary change. Data involving police and fire
protection, educational facilities, drainage, libraries, health services, solid waste management and
other urban-type services which might be needed by the different communities should be
analyzed. The study should determine present and projected fire protection, the efficiency and
ability for expansion; the flood control effectiveness and its extension to the service and boundary
areas; provision for parks and recreation to the expansion area; elementary and high schools and
community colleges, existing and planned; solid waste disposal; and any other needed services
of a specialized nature to meet individual community needs.

Analysis: The City adopted resolutions approving the Project subject to the Measure H election.
The CEQA documentation analyzed fire protection, flood issues, parks and recreation, solid
waste, school issues and any other needed services.
 

d. Regional Housing Needs - The sphere study should also consider the agency's policies and
approaches to meet its fair share of regional housing needs, if applicable. The agency under
review should provide information supporting and explaining how it intends to accommodate and
provide necessary governmental services for persons and families of all incomes in the most
efficient and effective manner. This information is especially important if the agency proposes or is
anticipated to have additional growth through the expansion of its present boundaries.

Analysis: A May 5, 2022 technical memorandum was submitted by the applicant, providing
additional information regarding the SOI Amendment's effect on the City of Davis meeting its
regional housing needs. The DiSC 2022 Project includes 460 for sale and rental housing units,
including 85 affordable housing units. 300 multi-family units will range from studios to 2 bedroom
units and 160 single family residential units are expected to be 3-bedroom homes at an overall
density of 15-20 units per acre. Therefore, the Project intends to accommodate housing for
persons and families of all incomes. The City is working with state Housing and Community
Development (HCD) to certify the City's Housing Element which does not rely on the subject
Project to provide zoned land to accommodate the RHNA allocation. The Project may help the
City will its allocation targets and also exceeds the City's affordable housing requirements, but
may also generate additional housing demand in the future.
 

e. Growth Incentives and Obstructions - Positive or negative factors regarding growth must be
cataloged. Agency policies, expectations, and commitments, involving such factors as existing or
planned freeway, road, or public transportation systems, shopping centers, educational facilities,
industrial locations, and state and regional park acquisition and development plans that normally
affect the amount and direction of growth should be included in the study.

Analysis: Positive economic factors have been quantified by the DiSC 2022 Project economic
analysis provided by EPS dated December 6, 2021. Negative factors regarding development of
this Project have been cataloged by the City's CEQA documentation. Long-term planning of the
amount and direction of growth will be conducted as part of the City's General Plan Update.
 

f. Natural obstacles to growth, including flood plains, unsuitable soils, waterways, etc. restrict
expansion into certain areas - "Man-made" obstructions such as roads and highways, Williamson
Act preserves, present and planned open-space areas for recreation and parks or buffer zones,
need to be analyzed and mapped. If surface supply or ground water safe yield appear not
adequate, the service cannot reasonably be expected to be extended. Further, it may be local
policy not to extend such services or otherwise to control or deter growth. This and other possible
"development [line]" or growth control policies must be examined as limiting factors.

2323



Analysis: There are no natural obstacles to growth in the Project area.
 

g. Information from Planning Departments - Land use designations and maps, special district maps,
and school locations must be collected and organized and related to the study areas. The history
of annexations to cities and special districts demonstrate when and where growth has already
occurred and should be referred to as available.

Analysis: This SOI Amendment would not change the land use designations, special district
boundaries, or school locations.The City has pre-zoned the property contingent on voter approval
and annexation.
 

h. Agricultural Land and Open Space - All spheres will be written with full review and consideration of
the adopted Agricultural Conservation Policy and the LESA Model as appropriate.

Analysis: Approval of the SOI Amendment would lay the groundwork for a potential future
annexation and conversion of Prime Farmland to urban uses for the northern 102 acres of the
Area. LAFCo policies at the state and local level have a strong preference for first developing
vacant land already within the City's SOI and steering growth towards non-Prime Farmland.
Protecting agricultural land and open space, and discouraging urban sprawl is among the core
state-mandated mission of LAFCos statewide and should be considered seriously. LAFCo can
consider a future annexation which will result in the conversion of Prime Farmland only if the
Commission finds that the proposal will lead to planned, orderly, and efficient development. It
would also need to find that other existing land within the sphere of influence is not available
and/or suitable to accommodate this type of innovation park use. The City solicited requests for
locations to cite an innovation park in 2014 and four were submitted. The other three sites are
either not or no longer available for consideration (Nishi, Bretton Woods Active Adult Community,
and the PG&E Corporation Yard). The other undeveloped areas within the SOI do not have the
location, access, and visibility that this location does with the I-80 interchange. The Area also
represents a sensible place for growth that does not extend beyond the eastern-most and
northern-most portions of the City (i.e. the El Macero Estates neighborhood is further east, and the
Wildhorse and North Davis neighborhoods are further north). Nonetheless, the potential loss of
102 acres of Prime Farmland from the Project are a significant consideration.
 

i. Availability of Services - An assessment must be made of the willingness and feasibility of present
and future agencies to extend services by agency, for example water capacity and availability,
sewers and wastewater treatment facilities, as well as fire, police, drainage, recreation,
landscaping maintenance, public utilities, and any other identified requirements within the
projected boundary.

Analysis: See item b and c above.
 

j. Compatibility of Present Legal Boundaries - Existing legal boundaries in and around each
community are to be mapped and analyzed as an aid to drawing lines. Special district boundaries,
assessor parcels, city boundaries, and any other appropriate legal boundaries should be
reviewed. Any planned extension of these areas, including planned capital expansions, should be
noted.

Analysis: This SOI Amendment is compatible with existing legal boundaries.
 

k. Boundaries - The current agency limits should be included in the sphere; however, if circumstance
exist that make development of, or provision of services to certain areas unlikely, analysis of
removing that area from the agency should be prepared. [Not applicable.]
 

l. Census Districts - Census information is important for all these analyses. Agency boundaries can

2424



often be used in conjunction with the census lines in order to provide a firm statistical base for
each community. [Not applicable.]
 

m. Socioeconomic Interdependency - When information is available from field trips, county planning
department, other county agencies and local leaders, the extent of economic, social and political
influence of the community upon its surrounding area should be evaluated.

Analysis: The City exercises a certain amount of influence on the Area being considered for the
SOI.  The Area is within the City's General Plan planning area and is part of the Pass-Through
Agreement with the County, which affords the City input on certain land-use decisions.

Public and Agency Outreach 
Staff routed the project application materials to all affected agencies on April 4, 2022 for comment and
no comments were received. A public hearing notice was published in the Davis Enterprise on May 4,
2022 and notices were mailed to all landowners and registered voters within a 300' radius and no
comments have been received.  

CEQA
The SOI Amendment is a discretionary action subject to CEQA. The City of Davis certified the
Environmental Impact Report for an earlier version of the Project, on September 19, 2017. After the
project was put on hold, the applicant modified the Project and the City adopted a Subsequent EIR for
the Project that was eventually rejected by the voters in 2020. The City then adopted an Addendum to
tailor the Subsequent EIR for the DiSC 2022 Project.  These environmental documents are each
relevant to the environmental analysis of the Project and are collectively referred to as "the EIR," for
ease of use.
 
The City's EIR identified significant and unavoidable Project impacts in the following areas: visual
character; conversion of Prime Farmland and agricultural land; air quality; greenhouse gas emissions
and global climate change; circulation; vehicle miles traveled; pedestrian and bicycle facilities; and
transit services. Significant and unavoidable cumulative impacts include: visual character; agricultural
land; pollutants; greenhouse gas emissions and global climate change; fire protection services;
circulation; vehicle miles traveled; and pedestrian, bicycle and transit facilities. The City's CEQA
documents have not been attached due to size considerations, but can be found here: 
https://cityofdavis.org/city-hall/community-development-and-sustainability/development-projects/disc-
2022. Staff provided comments to the Notice of Preparation to ensure the EIR was consistent with
LAFCo policy. 

LAFCo is considered a "responsible agency" under CEQA, i.e., a public agency, other than the "lead
agency" (i.e. the City) that has responsibility for carrying out or approving a project. In this case, LAFCo
is a responsible agency because its approval of the SOI Amendment and annexation is required for
the development of the Project. Pursuant to Government Code Section 15096, LAFCo as a
responsible agency complies with CEQA by considering the EIR prepared by the City and reaching its
own conclusions on whether and how to approve the SOI Amendment. LAFCo is required to make
findings for each significant environmental effect of the Project. CEQA requires LAFCo to balance the
economic, legal, social, technological, or other benefits of the Project against its unavoidable
environmental effects when determining whether to approve the Project. If the benefits outweigh the
adverse effects, they may be considered "acceptable".  These findings are reflected in Attachment A.

Attachments
ATT A-Reso 2022-03 CEQA City of Davis SOI Amendment DiSC 2022
ATT B-Reso 2022-04 Davis SOI Amendment DiSC 2022
ATT C-Correspondence
ATT D-City of Davis Innovation Center Study July 2012

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date

2525

https://www.cityofdavis.org/city-hall/community-development-and-sustainability/disc-2022


Eric May Eric May 05/06/2022 10:20 AMChristine Crawford (Originator) Christine Crawford 05/16/2022 02:11 PM
Christine Crawford (Originator) Christine Crawford 05/16/2022 03:52 PM
Eric May Eric May 05/17/2022 01:17 PM

Form Started By: Christine Crawford Started On: 05/02/2022 03:20 PM
Final Approval Date: 05/17/2022

2626



YOLO LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION 

Resolution № 2022-03

Adopting Findings as a Responsible Agency for the Subsequent Environmental Impact 
Report and Statement of Overriding Considerations for the Davis Innovation and 

Sustainability Campus (DiSC 2022) (SCH# 2014112012) 

WHEREAS, the Cortese-Knox-Hertzberg Local Government Reorganization Act of 2000, set forth 
in Government Code Sections 56000 et seq., governs the organization and reorganization of cities 
and special districts by local agency formation commissions (LAFCo) established in each county, 
as defined and specified in Government Code Sections 56000 et seq. (unless otherwise indicated 
all statutory references are to the Government Code); and, 

WHEREAS, Government Code Section 56425 provides LAFCo with the power to develop and 
determine the sphere of influence (SOI) of each city and special district and enact policies 
designed to promote the logical and orderly development of areas within the sphere; and, 

WHEREAS, on February 1, 2022, the City of Davis approved the DiSC 2022 Project (Project) and 
on June 7, 2022, the voters of the City of Davis will decide whether to ratify the General Plan 
Amendment and the Baseline Project Features for the Project; and, 

WHEREAS, Government Code Section 56428 authorizes any person or local agency to file a 
written request to amend an SOI. On March 28, 2022 Daniel Ramos submitted an application to 
amend the City of Davis’ SOI for a 118.5-acre area which includes the DiSC 2022 Project and the 
“Mace Triangle” (APNs 033-630-006, -009, -011, -012); and, 

WHEREAS, LAFCo staff has reviewed the SOI Amendment pursuant to the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) as a “project” per CEQA Guidelines Section 21065 because it 
is an activity which may cause a direct or indirect physical change to the environment; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Davis certified the Environmental Impact Report for an earlier version of 
the Project, on September 19, 2017. After the project was put on hold, the applicant modified the 
Project and the City adopted a Subsequent EIR for the Project that was eventually rejected by 
the voters in 2020. The City then adopted an Addendum to tailor the Subsequent EIR for the DiSC 
2022 Project.  These environmental documents are each relevant to the environmental analysis 
of the Project and are collectively referred to as "the EIR," for ease of use; and 

WHEREAS, the environmental effects of the SOI Amendment request are included and 
considered in the DiSC 2022 EIR certified by the City of Davis as the Lead Agency; and 

WHEREAS, on February 1, 2022, the Davis City Council adopted Resolution No. 22-009, 
adopting an Addendum, which included: the SEIR and responses to comments; and adopting 
CEQA Findings of Fact, Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program, and Statement of 
Overriding Considerations, a copy of which is attached hereto; and 

WHEREAS, Yolo LAFCo has limited approval and implementing authority over the DiSC 2022 
Project and thus served as a responsible agency for the project pursuant to the requirements of 
CEQA; and 

Item 8-ATT A

2727



2 Resolution 2022-03 

Adopted May 26, 2022 

WHEREAS, Yolo LAFCo complied with CEQA as a Responsible Agency by responding to the 
Notice of Preparation from the Lead Agency and reviewed the Draft Environmental Impact Report 
for the original Project, the Subsequent EIR, and Addendum for the DiSC 2022 Project regarding 
issues germane to LAFCo’s statutory responsibilities; and  

WHEREAS, CEQA requires a Responsible Agency to accept an EIR as prepared by the Lead 
Agency and to treat the document as being legally adequate absent specified circumstances not 
present herein. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, DETERMINED, AND ORDERED that the Yolo Local 
Agency Formation Commission hereby adopts Resolution 2022-03 as follows: 

1. Yolo LAFCo adopts and incorporates herein as true and accurate all of the statements
and recitals set forth in the preceding portions of this resolution and the entirety of the
Findings of Fact and Statement of Overriding Considerations attached hereto as
Exhibit A.

2. Yolo LAFCo makes the following additional findings, conclusions, and determinations:

a. CEQA Findings--Responsible Agency. Yolo LAFCo is considered a
Responsible Agency under CEQA for the EIR.  Yolo LAFCo’s CEQA review as a
Responsible Agency is more limited than a Lead Agency and Yolo LAFCo has
responsibility for mitigating or avoiding only the direct or indirect environmental
effects of those parts of the project which it carries out, finances, or approves.  Yolo
LAFCo’s use of the EIR is limited to the SOI Amendment and potential future
annexation of the subject parcel by the City of Davis. Pursuant to CEQA Guidelines
section 15096, Yolo LAFCo has considered the EIR prepared by the City of Davis
and has determined that it is acceptable and legally adequate for use by Yolo
LAFCo.

b. Findings for Less Than Significant Environmental Impacts. Various significant
and potentially significant environmental impacts have been mitigated to less than
significant levels, as set forth in the EIR’s Findings of Fact and Statement of
Overriding Considerations. With respect to those significant impacts identified in
the EIR that require mitigation to be reduced to a less than significant level, LAFCo
hereby finds that the measures at issue are within the responsibility and jurisdiction
of another public agency and not LAFCo. Such changes either have been adopted
by the City or can and should be adopted by other agencies.  (Pub. Resources
Code, § 21081, subd. (a)(2).)

c. Findings for Significant and Unavoidable Impacts. Certain significant and
potentially significant environmental impacts are unavoidable as set forth in the
EIR’s Findings of Fact and Statement of Overriding Considerations.  The impacts
discussed were determined by the City of Davis to be significant and unavoidable.
Upon review of the impacts identified by the City as being significant and
unavoidable, Yolo LAFCo has determined these impacts will remain significant and
unavoidable after approval of the SOI Amendment and that there are no additional
feasible mitigation measures that can be legally imposed by Yolo LAFCo. Yolo
LAFCo specifically acknowledges these impacts and Yolo LAFCo adopts, to the
extent applicable, the discussion of the significant and unavoidable impacts as set

2828



3 Resolution 2022-03 

Adopted May 26, 2022 

forth in the EIR’s Findings of Fact and Statement of Overriding Considerations 
attached hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated herein by reference.  With respect 
to those significant impacts that were subject to mitigation but could still not be 
reduced to less than significant levels, Yolo LAFCo hereby finds that the measures 
at issue are within the responsibility and jurisdiction of another public agency and 
not LAFCo. Such changes either have been adopted by the City or can and should 
be adopted by other agencies.  (Pub. Resources Code, § 21081, subd. (a)(2).) 

d. Findings for Project Alternatives. Project alternatives are discussed at length
within the EIR.  The alternatives set forth in the EIR were directed at the City, in
that the different options presented different permutations of a development
proposal.  Since the Davis City Council has already rejected these alternatives as
infeasible in detailed findings, Yolo LAFCo, given its lack of direct authority over
land use under Cortese-Knox, is not in a position to impose a different version of
the development on the City.  LAFCo’s role is to determine the plan for future
development and, if appropriate, amend the City’s SOI in compliance with LAFCo’s
policies and the Cortese-Knox-Hertzberg Local Government Reorganization Act of
2000 (Gov. Code, § 56000 et seq.). Although LAFCo has reviewed the City findings
for the project alternatives, LAFCo declines to make separate findings regarding
alternatives rejected by the City or to otherwise entertain alternatives over which it
has no jurisdiction. For reasons set forth in the CEQA Findings of Fact and
Statement of Overriding Considerations, the Davis City Council rejected the
alternatives set forth in the EIR as being infeasible or unacceptable for various
reasons. The Commission finds these reasons acceptable and adopts them as its
own to the extent that its statutory authority allows it to consider concerns such as
those weighed by the Davis City Council in approving the Project and rejecting
alternatives.  With respect to the alternatives rejected as infeasible by the City,
LAFCo hereby finds that specific economic, legal, social, technological, or other
considerations make infeasible the alternatives identified in the EIR.  (Pub.
Resources Code, § 21081, subd. (a)(3).)

e. Statement of Overriding Considerations. As set forth in the preceding sections,
Yolo LAFCo’s approval of the SOI Amendment will result in impacts that remain
significant and unavoidable. The City balanced the benefits of the Project against
its significant and unavoidable environmental impacts and determined that the
benefits of the Project outweigh its unavoidable adverse environmental impacts.
Similarly, Yolo LAFCo also approves the SOI Amendment because the substantial
economic, social, legal, technological, and other benefits that the Project will
produce render the significant effects acceptable.  This determination is based on
the EIR and other information in the record. In light of the foregoing economic,
social, recreational and planning benefits provided by the Project, pursuant to
CEQA Guidelines section 15093, the Commission finds and determines that these
considerable benefits of the SOI Amendment outweigh the unavoidable adverse
effects and the adverse environmental effects that cannot be mitigated to a level
of environmental insignificance, are deemed acceptable.

f. Mitigation Monitoring Plan.  Yolo LAFCo is aware of the Mitigation Monitoring
Plan adopted by the City to ensure implementation of the above-mentioned
mitigation measures, as well as all others within the City’s control. The Mitigation
Monitoring Plan is incorporated by reference herein. Since the EIR did not

2929



4 Resolution 2022-03 

Adopted May 26, 2022 

recommend or identify any mitigation measures that should be implemented by 
Yolo LAFCo, the Commission has no need to formally adopt any of its own 
mitigation measures or any separate mitigation monitoring plan or program.  

3. The Executive Officer is directed to file a Notice of Determination with the County Clerk
for Yolo County within five (5) days of the adoption of this resolution.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Yolo Local Agency Formation Commission, State of California, 
this 26th day of May 2022, by the following vote: 

Ayes: 
Noes: 
Abstentions: 
Absent: 

_____________________________________ 
Olin Woods, Chair 
Yolo Local Agency Formation Commission 

Attest: 

__________________________________ 
Christine Crawford, Executive Officer 
Yolo Local Agency Formation Commission 

Approved as to form: 

______________________________ 
Eric May, Commission Counsel 

3030



X. STATEMENT OF OVERRIDING CONSIDERATIONS RELATED TO THE DISC

2022 PROJECT FINDINGS

As described in Section III of these Findings, the following significant and unavoidable impacts could occur 

with implementation of the project:  

 Project implementation may substantially degrade the existing visual character or quality of the

project site and its surroundings (SEIR Impact 3-2; Addendum, Section I, Question ‘d’).

 Project implementation may result in a significant impact related to the conversion of Prime

Farmland, Unique Farmland, or Farmland of Statewide Importance (Important Farmlands) to non-

agricultural use, as shown on the maps prepared pursuant to the Farmland Mapping and

Monitoring Program of the California Resources Agency (SEIR Impact 3-5; Addendum, Section II,

Question ‘a’).

 Project implementation may result in a significant impact related to the loss of forest or

agricultural land or conversion of forest or agricultural land to non-forest or non-agricultural use

(SEIR Impact 3-7; Addendum, Section II, Question ‘d’).

 Project implementation may violate an air quality standard or contribute substantially to an

existing or projected air quality violation during operations, and a conflict with or obstruction of

implementation of applicable air quality plans (SEIR Impact 3-11; Addendum, Section III, Question

‘a’).

 Project implementation may generate GHG emissions, either directly or indirectly, that may have

a significant impact on the environment (SEIR Impact 3-37; Addendum, Section VIII, Question ‘a’).

 Project implementation may conflict with an applicable plan, policy, or regulation adopted for the

purpose of reducing the emissions of GHGs (SEIR Impact 3-38; Addendum, Section VIII, Question

‘b’).

 Project implementation may conflict with a program, plan ordinance, or policy addressing the

circulation system under Existing Plus Project conditions (SEIR Impact 3-70; Addendum, Section

XVII, Question ‘a’).

 Project implementation may result in a significant increase in Vehicle Miles Traveled (SEIR Impact

3-72; Addendum, Section XVII, Question ‘b’).

 Project implementation may result in significant impacts to Pedestrian and Bicycle Facilities (SEIR

Impact 3-75; Addendum, Section XVII, Question “a”).

 Project implementation may result in significant impacts to Transit Services (SEIR Impact 3-76;

Addendum, Section XVII, Question ‘a’).

 Project implementation may result in significant cumulative impacts related to long-term changes

in visual character of the region (SEIR Impact 3-85; Addendum, Section XXI, Question ‘b’).

Resolution No. 2022-03 
Exhibit A

Page 1 of 6 3131



 Project implementation may result in significant impacts related to cumulative loss of agricultural

land (SEIR Impact 3-87; Addendum, Section XXI, Question ‘b’).

 Project implementation may result in a cumulatively considerable net increase of any criteria

pollutant (SEIR Impact 3-88; Addendum, Section XXI, Question ‘b’).

 Project implementation may result in significant cumulative impacts related to greenhouse gas

(GHG) emissions and global climate change (SEIR Impact 3-93; Addendum, Section XXI, Question

‘b’).

 Project implementation may result in significant cumulative impacts to fire protection services

from the proposed project in combination with future developments in the City of Davis (SEIR

Impact 3-102; Addendum, Section XXI, Question ‘b’).

 Project implementation may conflict with a program, plan, ordinance or policy addressing the

circulation system under Cumulative Plus Project conditions (SEIR Impact 3-104; Addendum,

Section XXI, Question ‘b’).

 Project implementation may result in a significant cumulative Increase in Vehicle Miles Traveled

(SEIR Impact 3-105; Addendum, Section XXI, Question ‘b’).

 Project implementation may result in significant cumulative impacts to pedestrian, bicycle, and

transit facilities (SEIR Impact 3-106; Addendum, Section XXI, Question ‘b’).

The following reasons demonstrate that the benefits of the project outweigh its unavoidable adverse 

environmental effect, thereby justifying approval of the proposed project. There is substantial evidence 

that these public benefits outweigh the significant impacts of the project, and therefore, the above-

identified impacts are acceptable to the City of Davis. The project will provide for the following benefits: 

1. Economic benefits through tax revenues and project fees;

2. Create jobs through construction of the proposed project;

3. Provide additional housing in the City of Davis;

4. Increase the economic potential of the University of California and create long-term jobs;

5. Fulfill a vision that has been identified and studied by the City for over two decades, and that has

been embraced by the City Council for at least 10 years;

6. Create a space to retain and grow Davis-based businesses and start-ups;

7. Position the City of Davis for post-COVID economic recovery, stressing the importance of

providing shovel-ready sites;

8. Assist the City of Davis in its goal of reaching fiscal sustainability;

9. Provide a revenue source that will be used to maintain and enhance community amenities; and

10. Exceed the City of Davis’s affordable housing requirements and sustainability requirements, and

set a precedent regionally with respect to sustainability.

With respect to Item 1, the DiSC 2022 Economic Analysis compared the estimated tax revenue to be 

generated by the proposed project to the estimated cost of providing public services to the project. The 

Resolution No. 2022-03 
Exhibit A

Page 2 of 6 3232



proposed project would generate tax revenues through property tax, transfer tax, sales and use tax, 

transient occupancy tax, and public safety tax. Other revenue sources would be generated through City 

permitting, construction tax, and development impact fees, as well as the School Impact Fee and County 

Facilities and Services Authorization Fee. According to the DiSC 2022 Economic Analysis, the proposed 

project would have a net fiscal surplus to the City’s General Fund at buildout of approximately $3.88 

million annually.  

It is noted that while several of the above-identified significant and unavoidable impacts are related to 

traffic, due primarily to the fact that they are extraterritorial impacts (i.e., outside of the City’s 

jurisdiction), the Addendum requires the applicant to provide fair share contributions to the prospective 

improvements (e.g., see Mitigation Measure 3-70(a)), which would result in a substantial infusion of 

monies towards the needed improvements. In addition, the project includes construction of 

transportation improvements, such as a transit plaza on Mace Boulevard, south of Alhambra Drive, to 

service local and regional bus and shuttle service to and from the project site. The project will also fund 

and build new and improved bus stops with lighting, passenger shelters, and real time transit information 

signage on both sides of Mace Boulevard. Regarding bicycle facilities, the project would build the 

connection of the existing bike trail on Mace Boulevard to East Covell Boulevard, along the inside of the 

“Covell Curve” connecting the two roadways, thereby improving bicycle safety to schools and the project 

site.  

With regard to Item 2, the proposed project would create construction jobs. Considering the nature and 

size of the proposed project, a significant amount of construction workers would be needed in 

construction of the proposed project. Annual average direct construction-related employment during 

development of the proposed project is estimated to be approximately 195 jobs. Similar to the economic 

benefits discussed above, the annual average total direct, indirect, and induced employment due to 

construction of the project is estimated at more than 250 jobs. Total one-time earnings from direct, 

indirect, and induced effects of construction employment as a result of DiSC 2022 is approximately $200 

million at full buildout. Additionally, if building materials are purchased in the area, additional stimulation 

of the local economy and businesses would occur. 

Regarding Item 3, the demand for housing in Davis is well documented. Buildout of the residences would 

be tied to completion of the commercial space, assumed to be 2,000 sf of commercial space per residential 

unit. The proposed residences would have a strong impact on the overall feasibility of the proposed 

project. The proposed project would contribute an additional 460 residential units to increase the supply 

and variety of housing options available for students, employees, and university-related personnel. 

With respect to Item 4, the overall development of the project would increase the economic potential of 

the University of California. A technical memorandum that analyzed the economic benefits of the 

proposed project was prepared by Economic & Planning Solutions, Inc.1 The DiSC 2022 Economic Analysis 

measured the overall effect that an initial activity, such as spending in one industry, has on a region as the 

1 Economic & Planning Solutions, Inc. Subject: Davis Innovation and Sustainability Campus (DiSC) Economic 

Analysis – Pro Forma (Feasibility), Fiscal Impacts, and Economic Impacts; EPS #212099. December 6, 2021.  

Resolution No. 2022-03 
Exhibit A

Page 3 of 6 3333



Resolution No. 2022-03 
Exhibit A

spending recirculates through other sectors of the local economy through additional business and 

household spending. Economic impacts can be measured in terms of overall output, employment, or the 

earning from employment. According to the DiSC 2022 Economic Analysis, the proposed project would 

generate nearly 2,400 jobs, with employee compensation of over $200 million. The City would experience 

some economic spinoff of that direct employment, but a much greater spinoff and associated economic 

benefits would occur in other parts of Yolo County. Total County employment, including on-site 

employment and indirect and induced employment, would be approximately 4,000 jobs annually at 

buildout, with compensation of approximately $300 million.   

With respect to Items 5 and 6, the City began studying and looking for an opportunity to create a research 

and innovation park beginning as early as 2001, with the adoption of the current General Plan. In 2008, 

the City prepared the Business Park Land Strategy to determine whether the long-term supply of business 

park land was sufficient. Upon finding it was not, in 2010 the City Council established the Innovation Park 

Task Force to explore, with the help of UC Davis’s Studio 30, how, where, and whether to pursue 

construction of a future business/innovation park within or peripheral to City boundaries, for the purpose 

of retaining growing businesses and attracting emerging entrepreneurs to the City. The City Council 

unanimously accepted the Studio 30 Final Report and adopted its recommendations in November 2012. 

In 2014, the Council Innovation Center subcommittee developed a set of eight “Guiding Principles” to 

evaluate and guide refinement of proposed innovation centers, which were subsequently adopted by the 

City Council.  

As illustrated by the above actions, an innovation park has long been envisioned by the City as a way to 

build off a unique and valuable community asset, the University of California at Davis, to facilitate a 

diversified local economy and enable collaboration between the university and private industry. The 

proposed project would be consistent with these established City policies, including the Guiding Principles 

for Davis Innovation Centers.  The project would provide readily available, zoned lands that would allow 

for businesses to move quickly and with certainty, thereby enabling for retention and growth of existing 

local businesses and attracting new businesses.    

With regard to Item 7, the COVID-19 pandemic has had an significant financial impact on the City of Davis, 

the extent of which is still unclear. The City has experienced a loss of projected revenue and an increase 

in public health-related costs, which in turn necessitated budget reductions for Fiscal Year 2020-21. As 

noted for Items 1, 2, and 4 above, the DiSC 2022 project would generate revenue for the City and County 

through the collection of impact fees and taxes. It is also estimated to create nearly 2,400 jobs at build 

out, which in turn would help generate business, employee, and household spending elsewhere in the 

City and County. The revenue and jobs generated by project construction and at build out will assist in the 

City’s economic recovery from COVID-19.  

Regarding Items 8 and 9, the City Council adopted eight Council Goals in 2018, including to “Ensure Fiscal 

Resilience.” As described in the technical memorandum prepared by Economic & Planning Solutions, Inc., 

the proposed DiSC 2022 project would be expected to produce $3.88 million in net positive fiscal benefits 

to the City of Davis on annual basis at buildout. These revenues would be available to help support 

community services and amenities for existing and future residents. In addition to the projected 

$3.88 

Page 4 of 6
3434



Resolution No. 2022-03 
Exhibit A

million in net positive fiscal benefits, a land-secured assessment on market rate, ownership housing would 

provide a minimum of $150,000 annually at buildout of the market rate residential to fund services that 

are directly supportive of transit services, roadway repair and maintenance, roadway, bicycle and 

pedestrian safety and other community amenities. Additionally, the project would construct turnkey parks 

and maintaining all onsite parks and open space areas, relieving the City of a considerable maintenance 

burden.  

Finally, with regard to item 10, the proposed project would be required to provide 69 affordable units 

under the City’s affordable housing ordinance. The developer has committed to exceeding the 

requirements by providing 85 affordable housing units, which equates to 18.5% of the overall housing 

units in the project. Both rental and for sale units will be provided, and 74 of the 85 affordable units will 

be constructed on-site.   

The proposed project would also be one of the most sustainable projects in the City of Davis. The 

sustainability features include energy procurement and energy efficiency measures; housing near 

commercial development to minimize transportation emissions; transit, transportation, and circulation 

improvements to promote nonvehicular means of transportation; and habitat and agricultural 

conservation measures. More specifically, with respect to the project’s energy footprint, electricity 

demand would be met by 100% clean energy that is generated onsite or purchased from a 100% 

renewable program. All project buildings would meet and exceed Title 24, Cal Green Tier 1 and utilize the 

City’s Residential Energy REACH Code standards, and all commercial buildings would be all-electric for the 

building envelope. Utilizing these measures and more, the project will achieve carbon neutrality. These 

project features would set a precedent in the greater Sacramento region for sustainability.  

Substantial evidence supporting the benefits described in this Statement of Overriding Considerations can 

be found above and in the documents found in the record of proceedings. Any one of the reasons provided 

above is sufficient to demonstrate that the benefits of the project outweigh its unavoidable adverse 

environmental impacts, thereby each separately and individually justifying approval of the project. Based 

on the above, in consideration of the above-noted project benefits, despite the significant environmental 

effects, the City Council, in accordance with Public Resources Code Sections 21001, 21002.1(c), 21081(b) 

and CEQA Guidelines Section 15093, chooses to approve the project because, in its judgment, the 

economic, social, and other benefits that the project will produce will render the significant effects 

acceptable. 

XI. CONCLUSION

After balancing the specific economic, legal, social, technological, and other benefits of the proposed 

project, the Council finds that the unavoidable adverse environmental impacts identified may be 

considered “acceptable” due to the specific considerations listed above, which outweigh the unavoidable, 

adverse impacts of the proposed project. 

The Davis City Council has considered information contained in the Addendum prepared for the proposed 

DiSC 2022 Project, as well as the public testimony and record of proceedings in which the project was 

considered. Recognizing that significant and unavoidable impacts may result from implementation of the 

proposed project, the Council finds that the benefits of the project and overriding 

considerations 

Page 5 of 6
3535



outweigh the adverse effects of the project. Having included all feasible mitigation measures in the 

Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program, and recognized all unavoidable significant impacts, the 

Council hereby finds that each of the separate benefits of the proposed DiSC 2022 Project, as stated 

herein, is determined to be unto itself an overriding consideration, independent of other benefits, that 

warrants adoption of the proposed project and outweighs and overrides its unavoidable significant 

effects, and thereby justifies the adoption of the proposed DiSC 2022 Project. 

Based on the foregoing findings and the information contained in the record, the Council hereby 

determines that: 

1. All significant effects on the environment due to implementation of the proposed DiSC 2022

Project have been eliminated or substantially lessened where feasible;

2. There are no feasible alternatives to the proposed DiSC 2022 Project which would mitigate or

substantially lessen the impacts; and

3. Any remaining significant effects on the environment found to be unavoidable are acceptable due

to the factors described in the Statement of Overriding Considerations above.

Resolution No. 2022-03
Exhibit A

Page 6 of 6 3636



1 
Resolution 2022-04 

Adopted May 26, 2022 

YOLO LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION 

RESOLUTION № 2022-04 

Approving the City of Davis Sphere of Influence (SOI) Amendment for the Davis Innovation 
and Sustainability Campus (DiSC 2022) Project (LAFCo № 22-02) 

WHEREAS, the Cortese-Knox-Hertzberg Local Government Reorganization Act of 2000, set forth in 
Government Code Sections 56000 et seq., governs the organization and reorganization of cities and 
special districts by local agency formation commissions (LAFCo) established in each county, as 
defined and specified in Government Code Sections 56000 et seq. (unless otherwise indicated all 
statutory references are to the Government Code); and 

WHEREAS, Government Code Section 56425 provides LAFCo with the power to develop and 
determine the sphere of influence (SOI) of each city and special district and enact policies designed 
to promote the logical and orderly development of areas within the sphere; and 

WHEREAS, Government Code Section 56076 defines the SOI as “a plan for the probable physical 
boundaries and service area of a local agency, as determined by the commission,” and only areas 
within a city or district’s SOI can be annexed into the city or district; and 

WHEREAS, Government Code Section 56428 authorizes any person or local agency to file a written 
request requesting amendments to a sphere of influence adopted by the commission; and 

WHEREAS, on February 1, 2022, the City of Davis (City) approved the DiSC 2022 Project and 
approved placing the DiSC 2022 Project on the ballot for the June 7, 2022 election to allow the voters 
to consider the General Plan Amendment and the Baseline Project Features for the Project; and 

WHEREAS, the DiSC 2022 Project is proposed for an area that is outside the City’s SOI; 

WHEREAS, on March 28, 2022, the landowner for the DiSC 2022 project, Daniel Ramos, submitted 
an application for a City of Davis SOI Amendment for 118.5 acres to include APNs 033-630-006, -
009, -011, -012; and 

WHEREAS, the project was routed to all subject, affected, and interested agencies and no concerns 
or objections were received; and 

WHEREAS, a public notice was published in the Davis Enterprise on May 4, 2022 and mailed to all 
landowners and registered voters of the subject area including a 300’ radius; and 

WHEREAS, the project was analyzed in accordance with all applicable sections of the Cortese-
Knox-Hertzberg Act, LAFCo Standards of Evaluation and Agricultural Policy, and all other matters 
presented as prescribed by law; and  

WHEREAS, the Executive Officer reviewed the proposal and prepared and filed a report with 
recommendations with this Commission at least five (5) days prior to the date of the May 26, 2022 
meeting during which the project was set to be considered; and 

WHEREAS, an opportunity was given to all interested persons, organizations, and agencies to 
present oral or written testimony, protests, objections, and any other information concerning the 
Proposal and all related matters; and  

Item 8-ATT B

3737



2 
Resolution 2022-04 

Adopted May 26, 2022 

WHEREAS, at said meeting, the Commission reviewed and considered the CEQA documentation 
and the Executive Officer’s Report including all the information, recommendations, findings and 
conditions contained therein. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Yolo Local Agency Formation Commission 
approves the City of Davis SOI Amendment for the 118.5 acres comprised of the DiSC 2022 Project 
and the area known as the “Mace Triangle”, APNs 033-630-006, -009, -011, -012 (LAFCo Project № 
22-02) as illustrated in Exhibit A subject to the following findings:

Findings 

1. Finding:  In accordance with Government Code Section 56425(e), in determining the SOI for
the City of Davis, Yolo LAFCo considered and prepared a written statement of its
determinations listed below. LAFCo also considered the additional criteria identified in Yolo
LAFCo Project Policy 6.3.

Evidence: The following written statements were provided in the May 26, 2022 staff report: 
1. The present and planned land uses in the area, including agricultural and open

space lands
The Area is surrounded to the west and south by urban land uses within City limits.
Land to the north and east are zoned and currently used for agricultural production.
The land to the east is under a conservation easement, and therefore will remain in
agricultural use. The land to the north is also under a conservation easement, except
for the 85-acre parcel that was part of the original DISC Project that was denied by
the voters in 2020 and that has been removed from the Project. Considering the I-80
interchange, it is probable that development pressure will continue on the subject
property but additional growth inducing impacts are limited due to the existence of
surrounding conservation easements. LAFCo policies indicate a strong preference for
developing vacant land already within the City’s SOI first and steering growth towards
non-Prime Farmland. The EIR determined the Project would not be growth inducing,
but it would still result in the significant loss of 102 acres of Prime Farmland. The
Mitigation and Monitoring Program requires conservation easements to be provided
at a 2:1 ratio, but it would not make up for this loss and remains a significant and
unavoidable impact.

2. The present and probable need for public facilities and services in the area
The subject property is partially developed already with Ikeda's Market, City water
tank, and a Park and Ride lot. The City provides public facilities and services in this
area, which would be extended to the Area by the DiSC 2022 Project.

3. The present capacity of public facilities and adequacy of public services that
the agency provides or is authorized to provide
The capacity of public facilities and adequacy of public services to provide for future
urbanization of this property has been thoroughly analyzed by the City's CEQA
documentation for the original DISC and DiSC 2022 Project. The EIR has determined
the City has capacity of its public facilities (i.e. police, fire, water and sewer, parks,
roads, etc.) to serve the Project.

4. The existence of any social or economic communities of interest in the area if
the commission determines that they are relevant to the agency
The subject property is vacant and does not include any communities of interest.

5. For an update of a sphere of influence of a city or special district that provides
public facilities or services related to sewers, municipal and industrial water, or
structural fire protection, the present and probable need for those public

3838



3 
Resolution 2022-04 

Adopted May 26, 2022 

facilities and services of any disadvantaged unincorporated communities 
within the existing sphere of influence 
Analysis provided by the California Association of LAFCos indicates that UC Davis is 
a disadvantaged unincorporated community (DUC) as defined by statute, based on 
the presence of students who likely have a low income. Although the Davis Creek 
Mobile Home Park was not highlighted as a DUC possibly due to census block 
boundaries, it might be. Regardless, both of these areas within the City's SOI already 
receive municipal sewer, water and fire protection services and, therefore, there is no 
need to expand those boundaries, public facilities and services to the DUCs in the 
SOI.  

2. Finding: The May 26, 2022 staff report provided the information needed to analyze and
establish the City of Davis SOI per Yolo LAFCo Project Policy 6.5.

Evidence:  This policy provides guidance to staff regarding the information gathered for an 
SOI Update, is intended for a comprehensive SOI update that would happen in conjunction 
with a municipal service review, and many of the considerations are not as relevant for a 
project specific SOI Amendment. Notwithstanding, the May 26, 2022 staff report includes an 
analysis for each of the items listed (items a. through m.). The SOI Amendment is an 
appropriate expansion of the City's future boundary. It would result in orderly development 
and an efficient extension of City services. There are competing interests regarding the 
protection of prime agricultural land because approval would result in the loss of 102 acres 
of Prime Farmland. However, with the Mace Boulevard interchange there will be ongoing 
development pressure at this location and urbanization would be appropriate to take 
advantage of this freeway access and visibility. Growth would be relatively controlled because 
the SOI Amendment area is surrounded to the north and east by land in dedicated 
conservation easements (excepting the 85-acre parcel to the immediate north that was part 
of the original DISC project).  

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Yolo Local Agency Formation Commission, State of California, this 
26thth day of May 2022, by the following vote: 

Ayes: 
Noes: 
Abstentions: 
Absent: 

_____________________________________ 
Olin Woods, Chair 
Yolo Local Agency Formation Commission 

Attest: 

__________________________________ 
Christine Crawford, Executive Officer 
Yolo Local Agency Formation Commission 

Approved as to form: 

______________________________ 
Eric May, Commission Counsel 

3939



4040



COWELL BLVD

COUNTY ROAD 29

S EL
MACERO DR

M
O

O
R

E
B

LV
D

HUTCHISON DR

SY
C

A
M

O
R

E
LN

C
O

U
N

TY
 R

O
A

D
 1

05

A
N

D
E
R

SO
N

 R
D

E 8TH ST

C
O

U
N

TY
 R

O
A

D
 9

9

W COVELL BLVD

SHASTA

D
R

HUTCHISON DR

F
ST

E COVELL BLVD

H
O

PK
IN

S 
R

D

M
A

C
E
 B

LV
D

ALHAMBRA DR

POLE LINE
RD

LA
K

E
B
LV

D LOYOLA DR

L
STRUSSELL BLVD

C
O

U
N

TY
 R

O
A

D
 1

04

5TH ST

C
O

U
N

TY
R

O
A

D
10

0A

LA
 R

U
E
 R

D

CHILES RD

COUNTRY CLUB

DR

MONTGOMERY AVE

C
O

U
N

TY
R

O
A

D
99

D

C
O

U
N

TY
 R

O
A

D
 1

06
A

2ND ST

COUNTY ROAD 30

COUNTY
ROAD 32B

COUNTY ROAD 29 COUNTY ROAD 28H

C
O

U
N

TY
 R

O
A

D
 9

8

C
O

U
N

TY
 R

O
A

D
 9

7D

C
O

U
N

TY
R

O
A

D

101A

C
O

U
N

TY
 R

O
A

D
 1

03

C
O

U
N

TY
 R

O
A

D
 1

04

COUNTY ROAD 32A
COUNTY ROAD 32A

C
O

U
N

TY
 R

O
A

D
 9

9
COUNTY ROAD 29

S o l a n o  C o u n t y

Davis

Proposed Sphere of Influence

Sphere of Influence

Davis City Limit

±0 0.85 1.70.42
Miles

City of Davis Proposed Sphere of Influence

Printed: 4/4/2022

Exhibit A

41



4242



530-757-5602 | @CityofDavis

City Manager’s Office 

23 Russell Boulevard, Davis, CA 95616 

May 18, 2022 

Christine Crawford 
Executive Officer, Yolo LAFCo 
625 Court Street 
Woodland, CA 95695 

Dear Ms. Crawford: 

The City of Davis is writing in support of the Sphere of Influence (“SOI”) Amendment 
submitted by the Davis Innovation and Sustainability Campus (“DiSC 2022”) applicant. 
The application proposes to incorporate the DiSC 2022 project site and the “Mace 
Triangle” into the City’s Sphere of Influence. This property is located to the east of the 
City’s current boundaries and is bordered by incorporated City land on two sides.  

The desire and need for an innovation center in the City of Davis stretches back more 
than two decades. In 2010, the City formed an Innovation Park Task Force to identify 
“appropriate opportunities to create a place for primarily Davis-based research and 
technology companies to grow” and to create a “world-class next-generation university-
related business park” in Davis that will both support and leverage the research occurring 
at UC Davis. In 2014, after years of analysis culminating in the UC Davis Studio 30 Report 
and the adoption of the recommendations of the City’s Innovation Park Task Force, the 
City Council determined that an innovation center was desirable to ensure economic 
vitality in Davis and subsequently issued a “Request for Expressions of Interest (RFEI).” 
The RFEI sought applications from willing landowners/private partners.  

Four locations were identified by the City and Studio 30 Report as being appropriate for 
such an innovation center, including the proposed DiSC 2022 project site. To date, and 
importantly, the other three identified sites are no longer feasible for development – the 
western site was approved for a senior community (“Bretton Woods”), the Gateway site 
was approved for student housing (“Nishi Gateway”), and the 5th Street Corridor site 
(PG&E Corp Yard) does not have a willing property owner. As such, the proposed DiSC 
2022 site remains the only feasible location for the City’s long-desired innovation center. 
The DiSC 2022 project has gone through different iterations over the years, aiming to 
satisfy the City’s greatest needs and desires. The project was originally introduced in 
2014 as the “Mace Ranch Innovation Center (MRIC),” originating from the City’s RFEI.  
The DiSC 2022 project proposes a live/work campus environment, offering office, 
research and development, laboratory, prototyping, advanced manufacturing, housing,

Item 8-ATT C

4343



530-757-5602 | @CityofDavis  

City Manager’s Office 

23 Russell Boulevard, Davis, CA 95616 

 
 

and recreational and open space uses. DiSC 2022 continues to meet the objectives of 
the Innovation Park Task Force, achieving those goals with a more “Davis-scaled” 
project and adjusted to meet the City’s present-day needs.  
 
Among those needs is, as is apparent through the statewide housing shortage, is more 
housing to accommodate a diverse array of households. Under Housing Element law, 
the City of Davis is required to adopt a Housing Element that demonstrates, among 
other things, how the City can accommodate its assigned Regional Housing Needs 
Allocation (“RHNA”) for that cycle. The City’s Regional Housing Needs Allocation 
(“RHNA”) for the 2021-2029 cycle is as follows:  2,075 total housing units (580 very low-
income units, 350 low-income units, 340 moderate-income units, and 805 above 
moderate-income units).  
 
The DiSC 2022 project includes 460 housing units, both rental and for-sale, including 
160 single-family units expected to be three-bedroom homes, and 300 multi-family units 
ranging from studios to two-bedroom.  Notably, the project will include 85 affordable 
housing units, deed-restricted for very-low, low, and moderate-income households. As 
such, the DiSC 2022 project is consistent with the City’s need for additional housing 
opportunities and provides for a diverse array of housing types and does so at various 
affordability levels. Overall, the project presents a significant opportunity for the City to 
meet its state housing target.  
 
On February 15, 2022 the Davis City Council voted unanimously to approve the DiSC 
2022 proposal, subject to voter ratification and is currently presented to the voters on 
the June 7th ballot as Measure H.  On May 10, 2022 both the Yolo County Board of 
Supervisors and the Davis City Council each also unanimously approved a 
transportation/traffic implementation MOU between the County, the City, and the 
developer.  Should the voters approve Measure H the City would follow suit with 
submitting an annexation proposal to LAFCo for consideration.   
 
Again, given the City Council actions and the City’s long-held desire to pursue an 
innovation center the City of Davis is happy to support the Sphere of Influence 
Amendment before the Yolo County Local Agency Formation Commission (“Yolo 
LAFCo”).  Please reach out if you have any questions or would like to discuss things 
further.    
 
Sincerely, 

  Sherri A. Metzker   

 
Michael A. Webb   Sherri A. Metzker 
City Manager    Interim Community Development Director 
 

4444



Item 8-ATT D

4545



4646



4747



4848



4949



5050



5151



5252



5353



5454



5555



5656



5757



5858



5959



6060



6161



6262



6363



6464



6565



6666



6767



6868



6969



7070



7171



7272



7373



7474



7575



7676



7777



7878



7979



8080



8181



8282



8383



8484



8585



8686



8787



8888



8989



9090



9191



9292



9393



9494



9595



9696



9797



9898



9999



100100



101101



102102



103103



104104



105105



106106



107107



108108



109109



110110



111111



112112



113113



114114



115115



116116



117117



118118



119119



120120



121121



122122



123123



124124



125125



126126



127127



128128



129129



130130



131131



132132



133133



134134



135135



136136



137137



138138



  
  Public Hearings    9.       

LAFCO
Meeting Date: 05/26/2022  

Information
SUBJECT
Consider adoption of the Final LAFCo Budget for Fiscal Year 2022/23

RECOMMENDED ACTION
1. Receive staff presentation on the Final Budget for FY 2022/23 and open the Public Hearing for
public comments on the item.
2. Close the Public Hearing, consider and adopt the Final LAFCo Budget for FY 2022/23.

FISCAL IMPACT
The attached LAFCo budget includes proposed revenues and expenditures for LAFCo for FY
2022/23. This budget maintains resources for the Commission to meet its responsibilities under the
Cortese-Knox-Hertzberg (CKH) Act. Adopting a final budget will ensure LAFCo is adequately funded to
meet its legal obligations and maintain the shared services program.

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDED ACTION
Each year Yolo LAFCo adopts an annual budget with notice to the four cities and Yolo County. In
accordance with the CKH Act, a proposed budget must be adopted by May 1 and final budget by June
15 of each year. Following approval of the final budget and no later than July 1, the auditor requests
payment from each agency.

In accordance with the CKH Act, the cities and County split the cost of LAFCo funding 50/50. A formula
for the split of the cities' share is outlined in Government Code Section 56381 (b)(1); which would be in
proportion to a city's tax revenue or an alternative method approved by a majority of the cities.
Beginning in FY 2007/08, the cities of Yolo County developed an alternative formula to apportion their
50% of LAFCo funding by averaging a city's general tax revenue (less grant monies) and population.
In other words, the higher the revenue and population of a city relative to the others, the higher the
share of the LAFCo budget.   

In summary, each agency's portion of the overall LAFCo budget is listed below, with the
previous/current FY noted in parenthesis:

City of Davis - 16.40% (previous year 16.73%)
City of West Sacramento - 17.50% (previous year 17.48%)
City of Winters - 1.61% (previous year 1.51%)
City of Woodland - 14.48% (previous year 14.29%)
County of Yolo - 50.00%

BACKGROUND
The draft budget was heard and discussed at the April 28, 2022 meeting. The overall budget
remains flat as compared to last year, but as mentioned last month agency costs are going up
because there is less carryover fund balance available to offset costs. Following Commission
approval, staff emailed the draft budget to the city/county managers and received no response or
indication of concern.   

Changes to the final budget from the draft budget presented include:
139139



The salary and benefits schedule provided by HR did not originally include a 10-year longevity
pay increase of 2.5% for the Executive Officer effective December 2021. Staff recently caught the
error and updated the budget accordingly. 
Mark Krummenacker, our financial analyst working as an Extra Hire employee, has resigned
effective June 30, 2022 returning to the Yolo County Department of Financial Services (still
working with special districts). LAFCo will require financial work for our MSRs, so the $22,500 of
funding has been moved from Extra Hire under Salaries and Benefits (Account 500110) to
Professional Services and Supplies (Account 501165) because LAFCo will likely contract for this
service instead. 
The Department of Finance released new population projections on May 2, 2022, so the
apportionment changed slightly for the cities. 

The Final FY 2022/23 budget includes a total appropriation of $517,756 and total uses of $522,756.
The $5,000 difference reflects the set aside for a future LAFCo audit (3-year cycle). The following
itemizes the cost for each funding agency this year: 

City of Davis - $74,043 
City of West Sacramento - $78,983 
City of Winters - $7,283 
City of Woodland - $65,369 
County of Yolo - $225,678

Attachments
ATT A-Final FY 2022-23 Budget
ATT B-Agency Apportionment Final FY22-23 Budget

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
Christine Crawford (Originator) Christine Crawford 05/17/2022 09:30 AM
Christine Crawford (Originator) Christine Crawford 05/17/2022 12:47 PM
Form Started By: Christine Crawford Started On: 05/16/2022 02:13 PM
Final Approval Date: 05/17/2022

140140



YOLO LAFCO FINAL BUDGET - ADOPTED: FISCAL YEAR 2022/23
FINANCING SOURCES - SCHEDULE A ACCOUNTING UNIT: 6940522981

FY 21/22 FY 22/23 Agency Apportionment
Account # Account Name Revenue Revenue Net

Budgeted Budgeted Change Variance from FY 20/21 Explanation
REVENUES

AGENCIES SHARE:
402010 OTHER GOVT AGENCY-COUNTY 195,121$    225,678$    30,557$    50.00%
402030 OTHER GOVT AGENCY-WEST SACRAMENTO 68,210        78,983 10,773      17.50%
402040 OTHER GOVT AGENCY-WOODLAND 55,747        65,369 9,622        14.48%
402050 OTHER GOVT AGENCY-WINTERS 5,883          7,283 1,400        1.61%
402060 OTHER GOVT AGENCY-DAVIS 65,280        74,043 8,763        16.40%

TOTAL AGENCIES SHARE 390,241      451,356      61,115      

OTHER REVENUE:
400700 INVESTMENT EARNINGS-POOL 2,500          3,000 500           
403460 CHARGES FOR SERVICES - LAFCO 4,000          (4,000)       Stipend for CALAFCO DEO ended

TOTAL OTHER REVENUE 6,500          3,000 (3,500)       

TOTAL REVENUE 396,741      454,356      57,615      

USE OF FUND BALANCE
405999-0 UNASSIGNED 116,079      68,400 (47,679)     "Surplus" FB used to balance budget/offset costs

ASSIGNED - AUDIT RESERVE 10,000        (10,000)     Used only in audit years, next FY 24/25
ASSIGNED - CONTINGENCY - - 
TOTAL USE OF FUND BALANCE 126,079      68,400 (57,679)     

TOTAL FINANCING SOURCES 522,820$    522,756$    (64)$          

Item 9-ATT A

141141



FINAL LAFCO BUDGET - FINANCING USES - SCHEDULE B FISCAL YEAR 2022/23
FY 21/22 FY 22/23 Net Comments/Variance

ExpendituresExpenditures Net
Account # Account Name Budget Budget Change Explanation from previous FY

EXPENDITURES
SALARIES AND BENEFITS:

500100 REGULAR EMPLOYEES 225,884$    233,569$    7,685$      2% COLA increase approved by BOS
500110 EXTRA HELP 22,500        -                  (22,500)     Financial analyst resigned effective 6/30/22
500310 RETIREMENT (CALPERS) 72,057        76,354        4,297        
500320 OASDI 15,400        14,208        (1,192)       
500330 FICA/MEDICARE TAX 3,602          4,021          419           
500340 HEALTH INSURANCE (Life Ins/EAP) 72               150             78             $75 per employee
500360 OPEB - RETIREE HEALTH INSURANCE 17,393        17,985        592           
500380 UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE 831             793             (38)            
500390 WORKERS' COMPENSATION INSURANCE 500             500             -                
500400 OTHER EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 45,480        43,730        (1,750)       

    TOTAL SALARY & BENEFITS 403,719$    391,310$    (12,409)$   Extra help budget moved to Services & Supplies

SERVICES AND SUPPLIES:
501020/501021COMMUNICATIONS 2,217          2,213          (4)              County charge: courier and telecom

501051 INSURANCE-PUBLIC LIABILITY 500             500             -                
501070 MAINTENANCE-EQUIPMENT 600             700             100           
501071 MAINTENANCE-BLDG IMPROVEMENT 250             250             -                
501090 MEMBERSHIPS 6,500          6,500          -                $4,291 CALAFCO; $788 AICP; $1,250 CSDA
501110 OFFICE EXPENSE 1,000          1,000          -                
501111 OFFICE EXP-POSTAGE 200             200             -                
501125 IT SERVICES-DPT SYS MAINT (Dept System Maint.) 2,000          6,000          4,000        Estimate for budget - IT will charge at hourly rate
501126 IT SERVICES-ERP (Enterprise/Resource/Planning) 3,985          4,134          149           County charge: network charges 
501127 IT SERVICES-CONNECTIVITY 5,564          4,106          (1,458)       County charge: network charges 
501151 PROF & SPEC SVC-AUDITG & ACCTG 15,000        (15,000)     Audit on 3yr cycle, next is FY 24/25
501152 PROF & SPEC SVC-INFO TECH SVC 1,200          3,000          1,800        Website, timesheet software, GIS costs, domain renewal
501156 PROF & SPEC SVC-LEGAL SVC 7,000          12,000        5,000        Increase anticipated for FPD Implementation
501165 PROF & SPEC SVC-OTHER 20,000        42,500        22,500      Moved extra help $ here to contract services
501180 PUBLICATIONS AND LEGAL NOTICES 1,000          1,000          -                
501190 RENTS AND LEASES - EQUIPMENT 2,800          100             (2,700)       Bought out printer lease, only used for water now
501193 RENTS & LEASES-RECRDS STRGE (Archives) 1,411          1,243          (168)          County charge
501205 TRAINING 5,000          5,000          -                
501210 MINOR EQUIPMENT (COMPUTERS) -                 2,000          2,000        Replace 1 computer this FY (per IT policy)
501250 TRANSPORTATION AND TRAVEL 7,000          7,000          -                
501264 INTERNAL CHARGES (water, sewer, HVAC debt) 5,724          2,000          (3,724)       Overcharge in FY 21 - placeholder until recalc

    TOTAL SERVICES & SUPPLIES 88,951$      101,446$    12,495$    

142142



FINAL LAFCO BUDGET - FINANCING USES - SCHEDULE B (continued)
FY 21/22 FY 22/23 Net Comments /

Account # Account Name ExpendituresExpenditures Change Variance Explanation from
Budgeted Budgeted FY 20/21

EXPENDITURES
APPROPRIATION FOR CONTINGENCY:

503300 APPROP FOR CONTINGENCY 25,000        25,000        -                20% total = 5% appropriated (+15% in FB)
TOTAL APPROPRIATION FOR CONTINGENCY 25,000$      25,000$      -$          

TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 517,670$    517,756$    86$           

PROVISIONS FOR RESERVES
300600-0000 FD BAL-ASSIGNED-AUDIT 5,000          -                
300600-0001 FD BAL-ASSIGNED-CAP ASSET REPL 1,400          -                
300600-0003 FD BAL-ASSIGNED-CONTINGENCY 3,750          -                

TOTAL PROVISIONS FOR RESERVES 5,150$        5,000$        -$          Transfer into Fund Balance reserves

TOTAL USES 522,820$    522,756      (64)$          
-                 -              

BUDGETED ENDING FUND BALANCES AS OF 6/30/22 6/30/23 Net Change
  ASSIGNED - AUDIT RESERVE -$               5,000$        5,000        Drawing reseve to fund audit (every 3 yrs)
  ASSIGNED - COMPUTER REPLACEMENT 1,400          -                  (1,400)       Ending this set aside (not enough cost to warrant)
  ASSIGNED - CONTINGENCY RESERVE 75,000        75,000        -            20% total (15% in FB + 5% appropriated)
  UNASSIGNED -                  
TOTAL BUDGETED ENDING FUND BALANCES 6/3 76,400$      80,000$      3,600$      

143143



 YOLO LAFCO FUND BALANCE WORKSHEET
FY 21/22 FY 21/22 FY 22/23

Budgeted Projected Budgeted
Unassigned Fund Balance
      Beginning Balance 116,079$    147,516      68,400$    
      Estimated revenue 396,741      413,554      454,356    
      Appropriations (517,670)    (500,320)     (517,756)   
      Transfers (to)fr audit reserve 10,000        10,000        (5,000)       
      Transfers (to)fr capital asset replacement reserve (1,400)        1,400          -            
      Transfers (to)fr contingency reserve (3,750)        (3,750)         -            
Ending Balance -$           68,400        -            

Assigned Fund Balance-Audit Reserve
      Beginning balance 10,000$      10,000        -            
      Transfers in(out), net (10,000)      (10,000)       5,000        
Ending Balance -$           -              5,000$      

Assigned Fund Balance-Computer Replacement
      Beginning Balance -$           1,400          -            
      Transfers in(out), net 1,400          (1,400)         -            
Ending Balance 1,400$        -              -$          

Assigned Fund Balance-Contingency Reserve
      Beginning Balance 71,250$      71,250        75,000      
      Transfers in(out), net 3,750          3,750          -            
Ending Balance 75,000$      75,000        75,000$    

TOTAL FUND BALANCE
      Beginning Balance 197,329$    230,166      143,400    
      Estimated revenue 396,741      413,554      454,356    
      Appropriations (517,670)    (500,320)     (517,756)   
      Transfers in(out), net -             -              -            
Estimated Ending Balance 76,400$      143,400      80,000$    

144144



Agency
Tax Revenue 

(SCO 2020 Data)
% of Total 

Tax Revenue
City Population 
(DOF 5/2/2022)

% of Total 
City Pop

Avg % of Revenue 
and Population

LAFCo 
Apportionment Agency Share

Davis 55,999,876$        31% 64,869 35% 32.81% 16.40% 74,043.00$     
West Sacramento 75,895,165$        41% 52,837 29% 35.00% 17.50% 78,983.00       
Winters 4,480,505$          2% 7,422 4% 3.23% 1.61% 7,283.00 
Woodland 46,607,332$        25% 60,137 32% 28.97% 14.48% 65,369.00       
Yolo County 50.00% 225,678.00     
Total 182,982,878$      100% 185,265            100% 100% 100.00% 451,356.00     

From Budget
Total Appropriations 522,756.00
  Less: Other revenue (3,000.00)
  Less: Use of FB (68,400.00)
Agency Share 451,356.00

Item 9-ATT B

145145



146146



  
  Regular    10.       

LAFCO
Meeting Date: 05/26/2022  

Information
SUBJECT
Consider Resolution 2022-05 authorizing the City of Woodland to provide out of agency water and
sewer services to the Yolo Cold Storage Project, APN 027-270-046 located on the northeast corner of
West Street and I-5 off of County Road 19A  (LAFCo No. 22-03)

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Adopt Resolution 2022-05 authorizing the City of Woodland to provide out of agency water and sewer
services to the Yolo Cold Storage Project, APN 027-270-046 located on the northeast corner of West
Street and I-5 off of County Road 19A  (LAFCo No. 22-03).

FISCAL IMPACT
None. LAFCo will be reimbursed for staff time associated with processing this request in accordance
with the adopted fee schedule.

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDED ACTION
The Yolo County Planning Commission approved a Use Permit (Zone File No. 2021-0019) for the Yolo
Cold Storage Facility to authorize construction and operation of a 224,000 square foot regional-serving
cold storage facility used for the cold and dry storage of palletized agricultural commodities that require
controlled temperatures to serve the region. The approval was initially for individual onsite well and
septic services on a 14.89 acres parcel, however, the developer has instead pursued a connection
with the City of Woodland for water and sewer service. 

City services have already been authorized and extended to the Barnard Court highway commercial
on the south side of I-5 and the developer would bore these utilities under the freeway to serve this
facility. The site is located within the City's sphere of influence and the City is already working on an
annexation application for the Barnard Court commercial property and will now considering including
this parcel on the north side of I-5 as well. In accordance with the Cortese-Knox-Hertzberg Act Section
56133, the Commission may authorize the City to provide extended services outside its jurisdictional
boundary to an area within its sphere of influence in anticipation of a later change of organization.

BACKGROUND
The project site is an undeveloped 14.89 acre parcel in unincorporated Yolo County. The parcel is
zoned Agricultural Intensive (A-N) and is located at a freeway interchange between railroad tracks and
I-5. Surrounding land uses include vacant and agricultural land to the north, I-5 to the south, agricultural
land across railroad tracks to the east and I-5 to the west. The City of Woodland 2035 General Plan
designates the site for Flood Study Area, but because the parcel is outside City limits, the parcel is not
zoned by the City. 

This Out of Agency Services approval is consistent with Yolo LAFCo's Project Policies, specifically its
Standards of Evaluation (Section 3.3) and the City of Woodland Sphere of Influence. Extended
services already serve the highway commercial on the south side of I-5 on Barnard Court, would only
serve the cold storage facility, and would not be considered growth-inducing. LAFCo anticipates an
application for annexation later this year. The project is consistent with the Yolo County General Plan
and Zoning as approved with a Use Permit. 

147147



Water and sewer supply would be provided by the City of Woodland through connections to existing
water and sewer mains in Barnard Court boring under I-5. The City of Woodland has agreed to provide
services and has provided LAFCo with a will-serve letter contingent upon the developer and the City
agreeing to terms for construction and connection, specifically the payment of impact fees and
agreeing to future annexation. 

CEQA
The California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) requires analysis of agency approvals of
discretionary projects. A "Project," under CEQA, is defined as "the whole of an action, which has a
potential for resulting in either a direct physical change in the environment, or a reasonably foreseeable
indirect physical change in the environment." The proposed Out of Agency Agreement is a project
under CEQA. The County of Yolo, as Lead Agency, prepared a IS/MND and identified mitigation
measures that would avoid the effects or mitigate the effects to a point where clearly no significant
effects would occur.  The Yolo County Planning Commission adopted the IS/MND, approved the
project, and filed a Notice of Determination in accordance with CEQA. As a Responsible Agency under
CEQA, LAFCo is required to accept a CEQA document as prepared by the Lead Agency and to treat
the document as being legally adequate absent specified circumstances not present herein. Potential
environmental impacts relating to cultural sensitivity, geology/paleontological resources,
cultural/archeological resources, and greenhouse gases have been mitigated to a less than significant
level. Yolo County has made the mitigation measures Conditions of Approval of Zoning File 2021-0019
to ensure such Project revisions and measures are implemented. The Mitigated Negative Declaration
can be found at this link: CEQA Compliance | Yolo County.

Attachments
ATT A-Reso 2022-05 Woodland OOA Yolo Cold Storage Facility 05.26.22
ATT B-City of Woodland Will Serve Letter Yolo Cold Storage 05.10.22
ATT C-Yolo County ZF2021-0019 Approval Letter

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
Christine Crawford (Originator) Christine Crawford 05/18/2022 09:47 AM
Form Started By: Christine Crawford Started On: 05/16/2022 03:54 PM
Final Approval Date: 05/18/2022

148148

https://www.yolocounty.org/government/general-government-departments/community-services/planning-division/ceqa-compliance


1 
LAFCo Resolution 2022-05 

Adopted May 26, 2022 

RESOLUTION № 2022-05 

AUTHORIZE THE CITY OF WOODLAND TO PROVIDE OUT OF AGENCY WATER AND 
SEWER SERVICES TO THE YOLO COLD STORAGE FACILITY APN 027-270-046  

LOCATED AT THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF WEST STREET AND I-5  
(LAFCO NO. 22-03) 

WHEREAS, on May 9, 2022, Woodyard, LLC submitted an application to extend City of Woodland 
services outside the City’s jurisdictional boundaries to a 14.89-acre property APN 027-270-046 in 
order to provide water and sewer services to the Yolo Cold Storage Facility Project; and 

WHEREAS, in accordance with the Cortese Knox Hertzberg Act, Government Code Section 56133, 
the Yolo Local Agency Formation Commission (“Yolo LAFCo”) may authorize an agency to provide 
extended services outside its jurisdictional boundary but within its sphere of influence in anticipation 
of a later change or organization; and 

WHEREAS, the project was analyzed in accordance with Government Code Section 56133 and Yolo 
LAFCo’s local policy for Out of Agency Service Review adopted August 22, 2019; 

WHEREAS, the Yolo County Planning Commission adopted the Initial Study / Mitigated Negative 
Declaration (IS/MND) as Lead Agency for the project under the California Environmental Quality Act 
(CEQA), and determined although the Project could have a significant effect on the environment, 
there will not be a significant effect in this case because revisions in the project have been made by 
or agreed to by the applicant that would avoid the effects or mitigate the effects to a point where 
clearly no significant effects would occur.  The County approved the project and filed a Notice of 
Determination; and 

WHEREAS, CEQA requires a Responsible Agency to accept the Mitigated Negative Declaration as 
prepared by the Lead Agency and to treat the document as being legally adequate absent specified 
circumstances not present herein; and 

WHEREAS, the Executive Officer reviewed the proposal and prepared and filed a report with 
recommendations with this Commission at least five (5) days prior to the date of the May 26, 2022 
meeting during which the project was set to be considered; and 

WHEREAS, an opportunity was given to all interested persons, organizations, and agencies to 
present oral or written testimony, protests, objections, and any other information concerning the 
Proposal and all related matters; and  

WHEREAS, at said meeting, the Commission reviewed and considered the Mitigated Negative 
Declaration and the Executive Officer’s Report including all the information, recommendations, 
findings, and conditions contained therein. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Yolo LAFCo authorizes the City of Woodland to 
provide out of agency water and sewer services to the Yolo Cold Storage Facility project, on a 14.89-
acre parcel APN 027-270-046, located at the northeast corner of West Street and I-5, between CR 
19A and I-5 and shown in Exhibit A (LAFCO No. 22-03) subject to the following findings and 
conditions of approval: 

Findings 

1. Finding:  The potential environmental effects of the Project have been reviewed by the County
of Yolo as Lead Agency and determined although the Project could have a significant effect

Item 10-ATT A

149149



2 
LAFCo Resolution 2022-05 

Adopted May 26, 2022 

on the environment, there will not be a significant effect in this case because revisions in the 
project have been made by or agreed to by the applicant that would avoid the effects or 
mitigate the effects to a point where clearly no significant effects would occur, and filed a 
Notice of Determination in accordance with the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). 

 
Evidence:  The County of Yolo, as Lead Agency, prepared a IS/MND and identified mitigation 
measures that would avoid the effects or mitigate the effects to a point where clearly no 
significant effects would occur.  The Yolo County Planning Commission adopted the IS/MND, 
approved the project, and filed a Notice of Determination in accordance with CEQA. As a 
Responsible Agency under CEQA, LAFCo is required to accept a CEQA document as 
prepared by the Lead Agency and to treat the document as being legally adequate absent 
specified circumstances not present herein. Potential environmental impacts relating to 
cultural sensitivity, geology/paleontological resources, cultural/archeological resources, and 
greenhouse gases have been mitigated to a less than significant level. Yolo County has made 
the mitigation measures Conditions of Approval of Zoning File 2021-0019 to ensure such 
Project revisions and measures are implemented.  
 

2. Finding:  Approval of Out of Agency Services for the project is consistent with LAFCo policies 
and is a logical extension of City of Woodland services. 

Evidence:  This Out of Agency Services approval is consistent with Yolo LAFCo's Project 
Policies, specifically its Standards of Evaluation (Section 3.3), and the City of Woodland 
Sphere of Influence. Extended services already serve the highway commercial on the south 
side of I-5 on Barnard Court, would only serve the cold storage facility, and would not be 
considered growth-inducing. LAFCo anticipates an application for annexation later this year. 
The project is consistent with the Yolo County General Plan and Zoning as approved with a 
Use Permit. Water and sewer supply would be provided by the City of Woodland through 
connections to existing water and sewer mains in Barnard Court boring under I-5. The City 
of Woodland has agreed to provide services and has provided LAFCo with a will-serve letter 
contingent upon the developer and the City agreeing to terms for construction and 
connection, specifically the payment of impact fees and agreeing to future annexation. 

 
Conditions of Approval 

 
1. To the extent allowed by law, the applicant and the real party of interest, if different, agree to 

defend, indemnify, hold harmless and release the Yolo Local Agency Formation Commission, its 
agents, officers, attorney and employees from any claim, action or proceeding brought against 
any of them, the purpose of which to attack, set aside, void, or annul the approval of this 
application or adoption of the environmental review which accompanies it. This indemnification 
obligation shall include, but not be limited to, damages, costs, expenses, attorney fees, or expert 
witness fees that may be asserted by any person or entity, including the applicant, arising out of 
or in connection with the approval of this application, whether or not there is concurrent passive 
negligence of the part of the Yolo Local Agency Formation Commission its agents, officers, 
attorney or employees. 

2. This approval is subject to the City of Woodland and the developer agreeing to terms for service 
construction and connection, including the payment of impact fees and agreeing to future 
annexation, among other items.  

3. Consistent with the Yolo County approval Zone File No. 2021-0019, LAFCo approval will expire 
in two years on May 26, 2024 unless a building permit has been issued and construction 
commenced.  

 

150150



3 
LAFCo Resolution 2022-05 

Adopted May 26, 2022 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Local Agency Formation Commission, County of Yolo, State of 
California, this 26th day of May 2022, by the following vote. 
 
AYES:  
NOES:  
ABSENT:  

 
______________________________ 
Olin Woods, Chair 
Yolo Local Agency Formation Commission 

ATTEST: 
 

 

______________________________ 
Christine Crawford, Executive Officer 
Yolo Local Agency Formation Commission 
 
Approved as to form: 

 
 

______________________________ 
Eric May, Commission Counsel 

151151



152152



Exhibit A

153153



154154



Item 10-ATT B

155155



156156



Item 10-ATT C

157157



158158



159159



160160



161161



162162



163163



164164



165165



166166



  
  Executive Officer Report    11.       

LAFCO
Meeting Date: 05/26/2022  

Information
SUBJECT
A report by the Executive Officer on recent events relevant to the Commission and an update of staff
activity for the month. The Commission or any individual Commissioner may request that action be
taken on any item listed. 

     a. 05.26.22 Long Range Planning Calendar

     b. EO Activity Report - April 25 through May 0, 2022

     c. CALAFCO Legislative Report
 

Attachments
ATT a-05.26.2022 Long Range Planning Calendar
ATT b-EO Activity Report Apr25-May20
ATT c-CALAFCO Legislative Report 05.26.22

Form Review
Form Started By: Terri Tuck Started On: 05/13/2022 12:04 PM
Final Approval Date: 05/13/2022

167167



168168



Long Range Meeting Calendar – Tentative Items 

May 26, 2022 LAFCo Meeting 

Meeting Date Tentative Agenda Items Location 

Jun 30, 2022 
(note date 

change) 

• Adopt MSR for countywide Fire Protection Districts (LAFCo
21-05)

• El Macero County Service Area (CSA) SOI Amendment and
Annexation of 27384 Eagle View Court (LAFCo No. 22-01)

• Executive Officer Annual Performance Evaluation

BOS 
Chamber 

Jul 28, 2022 • Determination no MSR/SOI needed for the City of Winters
(TBD)

BOS 
Chamber 

Sep 22, 2022 • FY 21/22 Q4 Financial Update

• Update LAFCo policy to change member terms from May to
January in 2024/25

BOS 
Chamber 

Oct 27, 2022 • Adopt MSR for County Service Areas (CSAs) LAFCo No. 21-04

• FY 22/23 Q1 Financial Update

BOS 
Chamber 

Dec 1. 2022 • Adopt LAFCo 2023 Meeting Calendar BOS 
Chamber 

New Applications Received Since Last Meeting Packet 

Date Received Application Name 

May 9, 2022 • Out of Agency services approval for the City of Woodland to provide water
and sewer services to the Yolo Cold Storage Facility

Item 11-ATT a

169169



170170



May 26, 2022 

1 

LAFCo EO Activity Report 
April 25 through May 20, 2022 

Date Meeting/Milestone Comments 
04/25/2022 Meeting w/Elisa Sabatini (CAO) & FPD Chiefs Fire Sustainability Work Group 

04/27/2022 Mock Meeting in BOS Chamber Practice run w/BOS staff for in-person meetings 

04/28/2022 Meeting w/Chad Rinde (interim CAO) FPD MSR 

05/02/2022 Meeting w/Matt Keasling (Attorney) Application process for Davis SOI Amendment for 
DiSC project 

05/03/2022 Meeting w/Matt Hofhenke (Naviant) Status check on LAFCo files digitization project 
backfile 

05/03/2022 Meeting w/Eric May (Counsel) LAFCo policies for SOI Amendments 

05/05/2022 Meeting w/City of Woodland staff and Stakeholders Out of Agency services to provide water/sewer for 
cold storage facility project 

05/10/2022 Quarterly Meeting w/SACOG Region LAFCo’s 

05/11/2022 Meeting w/Olin Woods LAFCo Agenda review 

05/12/2022 Mock Meeting in BOS Chamber Practice run w/BOS staff for in-person meetings 

05/12/2022 El Macero CSA Meeting 

05/13/2022 Meeting w/Supervisor Provenza MSR follow up on East Davis FPD 

05/16/2022 Staff Meeting Weekly Zoom meetings 

Item 11-ATT b    
Executive Officer’s Report 

171171



172172



Item 11-ATT c

173173



174174



175175



176176



177177



178178



179179



180180



181181



182182



183183



184184



185185



186186



187187



188188



189189



190190


	Agenda
	Item 5-Renew Authorization for Remote Meetings
	Item 6-LAFCo Minutes 04.28.22
	ATT-LAFCo Minutes 04.28.22

	Item 7-Correspondence
	ATT A-CALAFCO Quarterly-May 2022

	Item 8-City of Davis SOI Amendment for DiSC 2022
	ATT A-Reso 2022-03 CEQA City of Davis SOI Amendment DiSC 2022
	ATT B-Reso 2022-04 Davis SOI Amendment DiSC 2022
	ATT C-Correspondence
	ATT D-City of Davis Innovation Center Study July 2012

	Item 9-FY 2022/23 Final Budget
	ATT A-Final FY 2022-23 Budget
	ATT B-Agency Apportionment Final FY22-23 Budget

	Item 10-Authorize City of Woodland to Extend Services to APN 027-270-046 Yolo Cold Storage Project
	ATT A-Reso 2022-05 Woodland OOA Yolo Cold Storage Facility 05.26.22
	ATT B-City of Woodland Will Serve Letter Yolo Cold Storage 05.10.22
	ATT C-Yolo County ZF2021-0019 Approval Letter

	Item 11-EO Report
	ATT a-05.26.2022 Long Range Planning Calendar
	ATT b-EO Activity Report Apr25-May20
	ATT c-CALAFCO Legislative Report 05.26.22




